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PARTI
ITEM L BUSINESS

OUR COMPANY

For the majority of our fiscal year ending on September 30, 2006, our business was comprised of two business units. These units are referred to
as our “hosting” and “transport” businesses. The transport business predominantly selis high capacity bandwidth over our fiber optic network
to other companies within the telecommunications industry. The hosting business provided various Internet services to small to large
businesses. The transport services are sold through our subsidiary NEON Communications, Inc. (‘NEQON”) and the hosting services were sold
through Globix Corporation and its subsidiaries Globix Hosting (UK) Limited and Globix Hosting LLC.

During 2006, we conducted a strategic review which led to the divestiture of our hosting business segment. The proceeds from the divestitures
weze used to pay down our outstanding debt, and leave us sufficient funds to support the current operations of our remaining transport business.
As aresult of the actions taken during the year ended September 30, 2006 and the following two months, we now are a company without any
substantial long-term indebtedness focused on one business; transport services through our NEON subsidiary. We contemplate growing this
business organically and by taking advantage of possible synergistic acquisition opporfunities.

Our employees are located in New York, New York and Westborough, Massachusetts. Our principal executive offices are located, at 2200
West Park Drive, Westborough, MA 01581 and the telephone number for this office if (508) 616-7800, Through May 31, 2007 we will also
maintait_l offices at 139 Centre Street, New York, New York 10013, '

Although we maintain a website at www.globix.com, we do not intend that the information available through our website be incorporated into
this annual report. Our SEC filings are available on our website. The public may read and copy any matetials we file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC") at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. [nformation on the

- operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an internet site
that contains our reports, proxy, and information statements at www.sec.gov.

NEQN Transport Business

NEON’s business strategy is to provide highly reliable data transport services and infrastructure to carriers and a small number of non-cartier
customers, including universities, colleges and financial institutions, in various markets in the Northeast and mid-Atlantic regions, such as
Bosten, New York, Philadelphia, Newark, Baltimore, Washington, DC, Portland, Manchester Albany, Providence, Hartford, and smaller
communities along our network routes. NEON focuses on providing and developing unique network connectivity solutions to custemer
locations as well as targeting Tier 2 and 3-markets such as Springfield, Worcester, White Plains, Hackensack, Vienna, Burlington and
Portsmouth. This strategy has allowed NEON to avoid some of the competition and pricing pressures commeon in other segments of the
telecommunications business.

Since its merger with Globix, NEON has experienced steady quarter over quarter revenue growth, increasing from $13.2 million in the third
fiscal quarter of 2005, the first full quarter after the merger with Globix, to $17.8M in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, a 34.6% increase.
Organic growth has come from and is expected to continue to come from the growing bandwidth needs of its existing customers and deeper
penetration of existing markets, as well as expansion into new markets and adding new services and targeting new customers.

We will also seek to grow opportunistically through acquisition. In pursuing acquisitions, we will seek companies with similar business models
where there are market and cost synergies, Qur ability to complete transactions will be dependent on identifying appropriate parties and being
able to put in place cost effective financing.

We offer the following services:

. LIT FIBER TRANSPORT SERVICES ~ Over our fiber optic netwotk, we delivet both electrical and optical transmission of
signals on fiber optic telecommunications circuits that are dedicated to our customers. We install aud maintain network
equipment that powers, sends and receives the electrical and optical signals. Once network equipment is installed on a fiber, the
network is considered to be “lit”. Specific service offerings include: SONET Frivate Line services at bandwidth levels including
DS-3, OC-3, 0C-12, OC-48, and OC-192; Wavelength (DWDM)} services enabling flexible and scalable high capacity transport
at 2.5 and 10 Gbps; and Ethernet services via dedicated, point-to-point connectivity offered as Fast Ethernet (FastE) at 50 or 100
Mbps and Gigabit Ethernet (GigE) at 600 or 1000 Gbps.

. DARK FIBER SERVICES - In limited instances, we lease individual strands of fiber to customers. When leasing individual
strands of fiber in this manner, we do net provide any of the network equipment that powers, sends and
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receives signals over the fibers. This service is referred to as a “dark” service as it does not yvet have the ability to transmit
electrical or optical signals. Our customers instali and operate their own network equipment to create their own lit service.

. CO-LOCATION SERVICES - We offer co-location solutions for customers who choose to own and maintain their own servers
and or optronics, but require the physically secure, climate-cantrolled environment provided by our co-lecation facilities and
connectivity to our network.

On Match 7, 2005, Globix acquired NEQN through the merger of a wholly owned subsidiary of Globix with and into NEON, resulting in
NEON becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of Globix.

Globix Hosting Business

At the start of our fiscal year, we also operated our Globix hosting business which provided Intemnet services to small to large-sized businesses
in 2 broad range of industries. These Internet services included Internet hosting and co-location, managed services, network services and
Internet access. In September 2006, we sold all of our shares in Globix Hosting (UK} Limited, our London based hosting business and, in
November 2006, we sald all of our shares in Globix Hosting LLC, our US hosting business. We no longer have a hosting business.

The hosting business operated Internet data centers in New York, New York; Santa Clara, California; and London England. This business
offered co-location services for customers who owned and maintained their own computer servers but preferred the physically secure, climate-
controlled environment provided by our Internet data centers and connectivity to our network. Through these divested businesses, we also
offered hosting services in a dedicated server environment. The hosting services included providing integrated hardware usage, bandwidth, and
managed computer services to meet customer-specific needs. The managed services included a wide-variety of maintenance administration,
and problem resolution services for many popular operating systems, Internet network devices, sofiware, security solutions, web-based
applications, and streaming media services. :

Strategic Transactions

In early 2006, we engaged The Bank Street Group, an investment banking firm, and GVA Williams, a real estate brokerage firm, to help our
board of directors review strategic alternatives retated to our businesses and properties. Over the course of a process conducted during the third
and fourth quarters of fiscal 2006, we considered various proposals from numerous potential strategic partners. As a result of this process, we
ultimately completed three separate transactions to sell our US hosting business, our UK hosting business, and the property where our New
York City headquarters is located, We used a portion of the proceeds from these transactions to repay substantially all of our long term
indebtedness, : :

On September 6, 2006, we closed the sale of our UK hosting business. The total sales price was $62 million, subject to various working capital
sdjustments. Of the total sales price, $3.1 million is being held in an escrow account until March 31, 2008 to cover potential indemnification
tlaims. We also entered into a transition services agreement with the purchaser of the UK hosting business to provide certain services until
mid-2007.

In September 29, 2006, we completed the sale of our building at 139 Centre Street, New York, New York. We received approximately $51.8
nillion in cash, after reducing the agreed $55 million fair market value of the property by $3.2 million in partial satisfaction of amounts owed
o the former owner of the property on account of the sale. From this cash amount, we paid in full an existing mortgage, a remaining payment
ywed to the former owner of the property and other fees and expenses. The arrangements relating to the sale of this property include a lease

)ermitting us to remain in the building until May 31, 2007 and to sublease a portion of the building to the acquirer of our US hosting business.

Ju October 20, 2006, we paid the entire $5 million principal amount of our 9% Senior Notes due 2008 as well as the accrued interest from
Jctober 1, 2006.

\s of September 30, 2006, accounting criteria for the classification of our US hosting business had been met which resulted in the results of
iperations of the US hosting business being reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented and the assets and liabilities being
eflected as held for sale at September 30, 2006. On November 1, 2006, we closed the sale of our US hosting business. The total sales price was
20 million, subject to various working capital adjustments. Of the total sales price, $2 miflion is being held in an escrow account until May 31,
007 to cover potential indemnification obligations. We also entered into a transition services agreement with the purchaser of the US hosting
usiness to receive and provide certain services until mid-2007, The buyer of our US hosting business agteed to assume responsibility for the
ansition services agreement entered into in connection with the sale of our UK, hosting business.




Also on November 1, 2006, we discharged substantially all of our remaining obligations under our 11% Senior Notes due 2008 and associated
interest payable under the terms of these Notes by depositing the sum of $ 76,165,002 with the Indenture Trustee, thereby redeeming the 11%
Senior Notes in full. Globix continues to carry a liability of $3,158,437 which may become due under a reserve arrangement established in
connection with our bankruptcy proceeding in 2002. Globix is working with the Indenture Trustee to determine how to dispose of any
abligations under this escrow.

WHAT WE OFFER OUR CUSTOMERS

Qur fiber network is primarily optical and consists of fiber optic communication paths for transmission of voice, data and video
communications. Fiber optic systems use laser generated light waves to transmit voice, data and video in digital formats through ultra-thin
strands of glass. Fiber optic systems are generally characterized by large circuit capacity, are resistant to external signal interference and
connect directly to optical equipment.

We offer end-to-end fiber optic capacity utilizing bi-directional SONET ring architecture, which has the ability to route customer tfaffic in two
directions around a ring, thereby minimizing service interruptions due to fiber cuts. Qur network is continuously monitored on a 24-hour, 7 day
a week basis from our network control center in Westborough, Massachusetts, to maintain quality control and to alert us of any degradation of
signal or loss of fiber capacity and to identify locations of such difficulty, enabling us to repair or replace impaired fiber quickly.

We use rights-of-way and licenses from utilities for major portions of our netwotk in the Northeast and mid-Atlantic regions. These utility
rights-of-way and licenses provide rights to install cable in existing underground conduits and ducts or on existing towers and poles. Other
forms of rights-of-way and licenses, such as those alonig roadways, require burying cables in trenches.

In 2003, NEON acquired all of the equity interests in Columbia Transmission Communications Corporation (“Columbia Transmission™).
Columbia Transmission became a wholly owned subsidiary of NEON and was renamed NEON Transcom, Inc. NEON Transcom utilizes
traditional rights-of-way, in the form of easement agreements, that were established with individua!l {and owners by Columbia Transmission
before it was acquired by NEON. This part of our network runs from New York City to the greater Washington, DC, area and represents a
relatively small portion of our entire network. This part of the network provides a redundant section of network that parallels NEON’s original
network from New York City to the Washington, DC areas.

Our network provides services to other telecommunications companies as well ag customers such as financial institutions, colleges and
universities. Qur network enables these companies to link their network facilities that are geographically dispersed with pnmary or redundant
connections in their networks. Our facilitics also enable many of our customers to connect their networks directly into the premises of their
customers. ‘

Qur network serves approximately 120 customers, including telephone company common carriers, wireless service providers, Intemet
infrastructure companies, international communication providers and other customers that are not telecommunications companies. Revenue
from our netwark is derived principally from lit fiber services under contracts ranging from one to seven yeats that provide for monthly
payments. Dark fiber service contracts have terms of approximately 20 years and generally provide for monthly payments. In addition, the
contracts typlcally provide for outage refated credits, a predetermined reduction or offset against the customer’s lease rate when a customer’s
leased facility is non-operational or does not meet the customer’s operating parameters, and also typncally require us to maintain adequate
insurance coverage, including product liability céverage.

Qur network's customer base includes the following:

Wireless Communication Companies. Wireless companies typically require connections between their facilities, including their cell
towers, to other network facilities such as an incumbent local exchange carrier’s central office. Microwave carriers typically require
fiber optic capacity to replace microwave service as their primary source of communications capacity.

Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers and Independent Telcos. Incumbent local exchange carriers (which are traditional telephone
companies) typically require some interstate network services for internal communications, signal control and operator services.
Incumbent local exchange carriers also require intrastate network services to connect to their major network facilities, as well as their

custormers.

Facilities Based Interexchange Carriers . Interexchange carriers (which are companies providing long distance telephone service)
typically require regional network services from their national network facilities to originate and terminate telecommunications traffic
deeper into the customer base; redundant routing to ensure relisbility in their networks; and additional capacity for their customers as

minutes of use and [P bandwidth requirements increase.




Competitive Local Exchange Carriers. Competitive local exchange carriers (which are other telecommunications companies that are
now allowed to compete with incumbent local exchange carriers) typically require interconnection between their local networks and
extensions further into the community.

Internet Service Providers. Intemet Service Providers (“ISP™) typically require distribution channels to interexchange carriers and local
exchange carrier switches as well as interconnection to other ISP switches to provide access to the Internet to consumers and
commercial customers via local networks.

Cable Television Companies. Cable companies typically require fiber optic capacity to upgrade their systems to higher speed
bandwidths, which allow them to increase the number of channels available, add interactive programming and Internet and data transfer
capabilities.

We also provide services to several international communications providers and non-carrier customers. We sell our services primarily through
our own sales force,

GOVERNMENT REGULATION
Fiber Optic Netwark Business

The core business of our network is that of a carrier's carrier and, therefore, the core business is not directly subject to common carrier
regulation. Several of our subsidiaries, however, have been certified to provide common carricr services through their authorizations as
competitive local exchange carriers, or CLECs. These authorizations for CLECS are granted by state governments, but subject these
subsidiaries to regulation under the Communications Act of 1934, as amended by the Telecommunications Act of 1996 as well as state laws.
The telecommunications industry as a whole is highly regulated by federal, state and local governments whose regulatory actions are often
subject to judicial modification. In light of the changes that arc occurring in the regulation of telecommunications, we cannot forecast whether
or not we will be subject to additional regulation in the future.

Federal Regulation

Federnl regulation has the greatest impact on the telécommunications industry and has undergone major changes in recent years as the result of
the adoption by Congress of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 on February 8, 1996 ( “Telecommunications Act”). The
Telecommunications Act is the most comprehensive reform of thie nation’s telecommunications laws since the Communications Act of 1934
was enacted. The Telecommunications Act imposes a number of access and interconnection requirements on teleccommunications cartiers and
on all local exchange providers, including competitive local exchange carmiers, with additional requirements imposed on incumbent local
exchange carriers. The Telecommunications Act provides a detailed list of items which are subject to thesé interconnection requirements, as
well as & detailed set of duties for all affected carriers. All telecommunications carriers must interconnect with the facilities of other carriers
and not install features that will interfere with the interoperability of networks. :

After lengthy legal proceedings, the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC") adopted revised guidelines implementing the
interconpection and Iocal compelition provisions of the Telecommunications Act. To foster competition in the local exchange market, the FCC
required incumbent local exchange carriers to offer unbundled access to their telecommunications networks to competitive local exchange
carriers at cost-based rates, including access to dark fiber. In December of 2004, during its triennial review, the FCC restricted access to or
eliminated some unbundled network elements (UNEs) such as dark fiber local loops. This decision has created both an opportunity and a
challenge for us. As our NEON business has not used UNEs extensively in the past, this order has had only marginal impact on our current
business. However, the elimination of UNEs could make it more challenging for us to cost-effectively expand into new markets. At the same
time, this ruling provides the opportunity for us to sell lit services to cartiers who need to replace lost UNEs.

Aside from the impact of this change, we believe that federal regulation does not affect our core business directly because it is not currently
regulated as a common carrier under federal law. Federal law imposes certain legal requirements on common carriers who engage in interstate
or foreign communication by wire or radio. These legal requiréments apply to telecommunications carriers to the extent they engage in the
provision of telecommunications services as defined by the Communications Act of 1934, Telecommunications carriers that provide
telecommunications services and common carriers are essentially the same. Each provides communications services directly to the public or to
some group of potential users on a nondiscriminatory basis subject to standardized rates, terms and conditions. We do not believe that our core
business offers its fiber capacity in this manner, because we enter into individual agreements on a selective basis with prospective customers
who use our services and facilities to support their own functions such as carrier’s carrier or common carrier’s services. We, therefore, do not
believe that our core business’ provision of dark or lit fiber capacity constitutes telecommunications service or common carriage as defined by

the FCC or under




the common carrier provisions of the Communications Act of 1934, In our core business we provide it and dark fiber on a private basis as a
catrier’s carrier. It is possible, however, that the leasing of lit or dark fiber may become subject to further regulation under the Communications
Actof 1934,

Accordingly, it is conceivabie that the FCC would subject our provision of fiber capacity to common carrier regulation. In 1994, the U.S. Court
of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit remanded to the FCC the question of the FCC’s authority to regulate dark fiber. In addition, the
FCC has been petiticned by cettain railroad, power and telecommunications associations, nene of which are affiliated with us, to clarify the
regulatory status of fiber capacity providers. To date, the FCC has not indicated an intention to rule on this remand.

If, and to the extent that, our NEON subsidiary were deemed to be a common cartier it would be required to comply with several regulatory
requirements, including, but not limited to, the duty to:

. provide such services indiscriminately upon any reasonable request;

. charge rates and adopt practices, classifications and regulations that are just and reasonable;

. avoid unreasonable discrimination in charges, practices, regulations, facilitics and services;

. pay into federal funds for Telecommunications Relay Services, the North American Numbering Administration and Local

Number Portability;

4 limit its use of Customer Proprietary Network Information to provisioning of the services in connection with which the Customer
Proprictary Network was obtained; and

. comply with various reporting, regulatory fee payment and publication of rates.

NEON might also be required to file tariffs setting forth the rates for its services or to make its rates otherwise publicly available, These
regulatory requirements could impose substantial burdens on NEON,

As a provider of interstate telecommunications, NEON’s revenues from sales to customer that are end users are subject to contributions to the
FCC’s Universal Service Fund. The Universal Service Fund is a fund that was cstablished to ensure the availability of affordable basic
telecommunications services. As a general matter, revenues received from other telecommunications carriers for fiber capacity NEON provides
are not subject to contribution to the Universal Service Fund. However, NEON’s revenues from the provision of fiber capacity to
telecommunications carriers who themselves are exempt from contributing to the Universal Service Fund because their contribution would be
less than $10,000 would be subject to such contribution if the carrier notifics NEON that it is not contributing directly, in which case the carrier
is considered to be an end user. In addition, if a carrier purchasing NEQON’s capacity uses it for its own purposes, then NEON would be subject
to such contribution for the revenue generated from that carrier bécause it too would be considered an end user. Because certain Internet service
providers are deemed end users, NEON’s revenues received pursuant to fiber capacity leases to such entities would be subject to contributions
to the Universal Service Fund. If such contribution would be less than $10,000, NEON would qualify for a de minimus exemption from
contribution to the Universal Service Fund. The assessment rate is calculated quarterly and is currently set at 9.1% of gross end-user revenues.
The assessment rate may be higher in subsequent years. However, the majority of NEON's current revenue does not qualify as “end-user™
revenue. NEON's required contributions to the Universal Service Fund for the year ended December 31, 2005 and the nine-months ended
September 30, 2006, were approximately $265,000 and $233,000, respectively. The FCC is currently reviewing its rules for recovery of
Universal Service Fund contributions and evaluating who is required to contribute to the Universal Service Funid. The outcome of these
proceedings could affect the amount NEON is requited to contribute to the Universal Service Fund in the future.

State Regulation

The Telecommunications Act prohibits state and local governments from enforcing any law, rule or legal requirement that prohibits or has the
effect of prohibiting any person from providing any interstate or intrastate telecommunications service. In addition, under current FCC policics,
any dedicated transmission service or facility that is used more than 10% of the time for the purpose of interstate or foreign communication is
subject to FCC jurisdiction to the exclusion of any state regulation. Notwithstanding these prohibitions and limitations, states regulate
telecommunications services, through certification of providers of intrastate services (or competitive local exchange carriers), regulation of
intrastate rates and service offerings, and other regulations and retain jurisdiction under the Telecommunications Act to adopt, on a
competitively neutral basis, regulations necessary to preserve and advance universal service, protect the public safety and welfare, ensure the
continued quality of telecommunications services and safeguard the rights of consumers. Accordingly, the degree of state involvement in local
telecommunications services may be substantial.




The state regulatory environment varies substantially from state to state. At present, we do not anticipate that the regulatory tequircments to
which NEON is subject in the Northeast and mid-Atlantic markets will have any material adverse effect on its operations. In some jurisdictions,
NBONTS pricing flexibility for intrastate services may be limited because of regulation, although its direct competitors are subject to similar
;IesEté)i;tlons. However, there can be no assurance that future regulatory, judicial or legislative action will not have a material adverse effect on

Local Goverpment Regulation

In addition to federal and state faws, local govermnments exercise legal authority that may impact NEON’s business. For example, local
governments, such as the City of Boston and the City of New York, typically retain the ability to license public rights-of-way, subject to the
limitation that local governments may not prohibit persons from providing telecommunications services. Local authorities affect the tirning and
costs associated with NEON’s use of public rights-of-way. These regulations may have an adverse effect on NEON's business.

Distribution of Copyrighted Material

The Digital Millennium Copyright Act (“DMCA") includes a limitation on liability of on-line service providers for copyright infringement for
transmitting, routing or providing connections, transient storage, caching or storage at the direction of a user. This limitation on liability applies
if the service provider had no actual knowledge or awarencss of the copyright infringement and if certain other conditions are met. It is not yet
clear how the DMCA will be applied to limit liability that we may face in the future for any possible copyright infringement or copyright-
related issues relating to the activities of our customers. The DMCA also requires Internet service providers to follow certain “notice and take-
down” procedures in order to be able to take advantage of the limitation on liability provided for in the DMCA.

We have implemented the procedures required by the DMCA and require our users to agree to an “acceptable use” palicy which prohibits the
use of our facilities for illegal purposes. There can be no assurance, however, that our procedures and acceptable use policy will shield us from
liability. Despite enactment of the DMCA, the law relating to the liability of companies that provide Internet-related information carried on or
disseminated through their networks remains largely unsettled. Claims could be made against us under currently existing or future laws in the
United States or other jurisdictions for defamation, obscenity, negligence, copyright, trademark infringement or other legal theories based on
the nature and content of the materials disseminated through our networks,

COMPETITION

The telecommunications industry is highly competitive, and we face substantial competition in the markets served by transport business. Many
of our existing and prospective competitors have financial, managerial and other resources that are substantially greater than ours, as well as -
other competitive advantages, including established reputations in the communications market. Qur current and projected competitors in this
market generally fall into five segments: .

Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers and Interexchange Carriers . Incumbent local exchange carmiers include regional Bell operating
companies, such as Verizon. Interexchange carriers include such companies as AT&T and Sprint. These communications carriers
currently own or lease fiber optic networks in our service areas. Incumbent local exchange carriers and interexchange carriers dominate
their respective local markets in the cities connected by our network.

National Long-Haul Fiber Carriers. Carriers such as Qwest Communications, Global Crossing and Level 3 Communications own or
lease fiber optic networks in our service areas and employ advanced technology comparable to that of its network.

Régional Carriers. Regional carriers include Cavalier/Elantic and PPL Telecom.
Dark Fiber Providers. Providers of dark fiber include AboveNet, NEESCom (National Grid}, NSTAR, FiberTech and Sunesys.
Metro Carriers. Mefro carriers include RCN Commercial Division and FiberNet.

Wireless Carrier: Companies that offer transport services utilizing wircless technologies such as Gigabeam and 5 ® Avenue.

Some of the strategies we employ to offset these competitive forces include pursuing unique rights of way as well as targeting underserved
markets within the Northeast and mid-Atlantic corridor.




TRADEMARKS AND PATENTS

We currently have five registered service marks and one service mark pending with the United States Patent and Trademark Office.

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

As of September 30, 2006, we had approximately 282 full-time employees: all of whom worked in the United States. Following the sale of our
US hosting business on November 1, 2006, we had 145 employees. In addition to our full-time employees, we also employ part-time personnel
from time to time in various departments to meet fluctuations in work levels, None of our employees are covered by a collective bargaining
agreement.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
An investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. There are a number of important factors that could affect our business and future

operating results, including without limitation, the factors set forth below. The infermation contained in this annual repor should be read in
light of such factors.

Risks Related to Our Financial Condition and Capital Requirements
We have a history of losses which, if continued in the future, could eventually make us unable to meet our financial obligations.

We have expericnced significant losses since we began operations. Though we had net income atiributable to common stockholders in fiscal
2006 of $23,763,000, we had a loss from continuing operations of $24,504,000.

We may continue to need capital to maintain and upgrade our systems and support our operations.

We may require additional cash in order to expand the geographic coverage and the range of services offered by our fiber optic network in
order to be competitive with other service providers and to meet customer demands. Historically NEON has expended substantial amounts on
construction of this network from the proceeds of its financing activities and has generated negative cash flow. In fiscal 2006, we invested
approximately $19.0 miilion in capital expenditures for our NEON business segment.

Failure to make needed capital investments in our fiber optic network business could result in a loss of revenues and customers and prevent us
from being able to offer competitive services.

We may need new financing to fund our existing business and plans for expansion. We may not be able to secure financing on terms
acceptable to us, if at all. Any new financing could contain terms that limit our financial and operating flexibility and place us at a

competitive disadvantage.

While we have paid our previously outstanding 11% and 9% notes, we may need to borrow additional funds. Thére is no assurance that
additional funding will be available and, if it is, what interest rate we will have to pay, or what other terms would be required of us.

Risks Related to Qur Acquisition and Divestiture Strategy

Our acquisition strategy may prove to be unsuccessful, which could resuit in further fosses and an inability to meet our financial
obligations.

In order to increase our revenue base, we may make investments in or acquire businesses, products, services or technologies. Consequently, we
are subject to the following risks:

. we may not be able to make investments or acquisitions on terms which prove advantageous;

. acquisitions may cause a disruption in our ongoing business, distract our management and other resources and make it difficult to
maintain the operations, erganization and procedures of our company or the acquired business.

. we may not be able to retain key employees of the acquired business or to maintain good relations with its customers or
suppliers; :

. we may not be able to obtain financing to complete a transaction; and

. we may not be able to identify and/or afford suitable acquisitions.






We may not be able to use some of our net operating losses for U.S. federal income tax purposes, which may increase cur future tax
Liability.

Prior to our acquisition of NEON, changes in the ownership of NEON securities as a result of NEON's 2002 plan of reorganization have
caused there to be an annual limitation on the use of net operating loss carry forwards that arose prior to the effective date of NEON's plan of
reorganization. Similarly, changes in the ownership of Globix's securities as a result of our 2002 plan of reorganization have caused there to be
an annual limitation on the use of net operating loss carry forwards that arose prior to the effective date of Globix's plan of reorganization. As a
result of the merger with NEON and the open market divestiture of significant amounts of shares of Globix stock by former NEON
shareholders, both Globix and NEON experienced ownership changes in March 2005 and April 2006, respectively. The availability of NOL~
carryfom'ards to reduce the Company’s future Federal income tax liability is subject to limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue
Code. Additional limitations on our ability to use net operating losses could increase our U.S. federal income tax liability.

We continue to have indemnification obligations and other possible post-closing liabilities relating to (he hosting business we divested
and the headquarters building we sold.

The agreements under which we sold our U.K. and U.S. hosting business and our 139 Centre Street sale provide for potential indemnification
obligations and other possible post-closing liabilitics. Funds have been escrowed under each of the hosting business transactions to cover
remaining obligations and liabilitics, but under limited circumstances we could be held Hable for more than the escrowed amounts. Under the
139 Centre Street sale, we have a requircment to vacate the building by May 31, 2007 and would be subject to penalties if we failed to do so.
We have not yet been released from all obligations related to real estate under lease with the US and UK hosting businesses, and there is the
potential that full release will not be realized despite the buyers’ contractual obligations to obtain such releases.

Risks Related to Our Business Generally
OQur revenues could decline significantly if we lose customers or if our existing customers reduce their level of spending on our services.

We may experience declines in revenues in the transport services business due to customers leaving us or staying with us but choosing to
decrease their spending on our services.

Intense competition, overcapacity and a slow down in demand in the telecommunications market could also result in a decline in revenues in
the fiber aptic services business.

Continued declines in revenue could eventually result in an inability to meet our financial obligations.
Our largest five customers repfesent approximately 54.9% of our revenues from continuing operations in 2006,

While we expect to continue to provide service to these customers, if one or more of these customers were to discontinue service it could have
n material effect on our revenues and results of operations.

If we are unable to maintain and upgrade our netwerk and l'acihlles, we could lose customers and revenues or be unable to offer
competitive services.

A key clement of our business strategy is the maintenance and upgrading of out facilities and network, which has required, and will continue to
require, management time and the periedic expenditure of capital.

Our business could suffer from a loss of management personncl which may reduce our efficiency and control over our operations and
reduce our revenues or earnings,

Since our emergence from bankruptey, we have undertaken a number of changes in management as well as reductions in staffing. As a result,
our business has experienced a lack of continuity in management from time to time (and may continue to do s0). Our ability to operate
effectively depends largely on the expericnce, skills and performance of our senior management team. The loss or unavailability 1o us of any
member of our senior management team may reduce our efficiency and contro! over operations and may reduce our revenues or camnings.

We may not be able to attract or retain the personnel we need in critical areas of our business, which could reduce our efficiency,
impair the quality of our services or otherwise adversely affect the ability of our business to perform its functions.

We may experience difficulties in attracting and retaining key personnel for management, technical, sates and marketing and customer support
positions. The failure to attract or retain qualified personnel in any of these critical areas could adversely affect the




ability qf our business to perform its functions. Further efforts to control management costs, given our flat organizational structure, could have
an additional adverse impact on employee morale.

Our communications systems, network and infrastructure are vulnerable to physical damage, catastrophic outages, power loss, service
limitations and other discuptions, which could result in immediate loss of revenues, payment of outage credits to our customers and,
more importantly, the loss of custemer confidence and business reputation.

Interruptions and service limitations in our fiber optic network services could result from natural disasters as well as power loss, our inability to
acquire fuel for our backup gencrators, capacity limitations, software defccts, breaches of security, telecommunications failure, terrorist attacks
and similar events. We also lease telecommunications lines from local, regional and national carriers, whose service may be interrupted. Any
damage, failure or limitation that interrupts or delays our operations or limits our ability to provide service could result in the loss of customers
and revenues.

Our agreements with network customers typically provide for the payment of outage related credits (a predetermined reduction or offset against
our lease rate when a customer’s leased facility is non-operational or otherwise does not meet certain operating parameters) or damages in the
event of a disruption in service. These credits or damages could be substantial and could significantly decrease our net revenues.

If our security measures proved to be inadequate, we could lose customers.

Qur infrastructure is potentially vulnerable to physical or electronic break-ins, viruses, denial of service attacks or similar problems. A breach
of our sccurity measures could jeopardize the security of confidential and proprietary information and cause interruptions in our operations. We
could be required to make significant additional investments to protect against or remedy security breaches. The occurrence of these problems
could result in liability and harm our busiress and reputation, v

Intense competition {n the telecommunications industry from a broad range of competitors may prevent us from obtaining customers,
require us to lower prices and reduce our revenues.

Qur fiber optic network business faces substantial competition from companies with significantly greater financial and other resources, whose
capacity is interchangeable with the capacity that we offer, including incumbent local telephone companies, national long-haul and regional
carriers, dark fiber providers and metro carriers. In addition, potential competitors capable of offering services similar to those we offer include
other communications service providers that own and operate their own networks and equipment, including cable television companies, electric
utilities, microwave carriers, satellite carriers, wireless communication system operators and end-users with private communications networks.

Many of the targeted customers of our fiber optic network are also potential competitors. If our services are not satisfactory or cost competitive,
our targeted customers may utilize other providers where available, or construct their own netwotks, which would reduce their need for our
services and create future sources of competition for us,

Our business relies on third-party data communications and telecommunlications providers that could Increase prices or interrupt
service, which in turn could cause us to lose customers and revenues.

Our existing network relics on many third-party data communications and telecommunications providers. These carriers are subject to price
constraints, including tariff controls, that in the future may be relaxed or lifted. Price increases or the lack of service availability and quality
could increase the costs of maintaining our network and result in the loss of customers and revenues.

We may not be able to obtain hardware and software on the scale and at the times we need at an affordable cost, and fallure to do so
could cause us to lose customers or be unable to offer competitive service.

We rely on outside vendors to supply us with computer hardware, software and networking equiptent. Our fiber optic network relies on
equipment from Nortel Networks, Cisco Systems, Lucent Technologies and ECI Telecom. Consequently, our expertise is concentrated in
products from these manufacturers. [f we are unable over an extended period of time to obtain the products and services that we need on a
timely basis and at affordable prices, it could result in the loss of customers and revenues. :

Our dependence on a limlted number of telecommunications carriers exposes us to possible intcrrup'lions that could delay or prevent
1s from providing our services.

Approximately 31.3% of the cost of revenues of continuing operations for the year ended September 30, 2006 was derived from services
wovided by 3 major telecommunication carriers. While we believe that most of these services can be obtained from other alternative carriers,
in interruption in service from one of these carriers or other suppliers could limit our ability to serve customers, which would adversely affect
nr results of operations.




Qur business requires us to adapt to technological changes, and significant technological changes could render our existing services
obsolete.

We must adapt to our rapidly changing market by continually improving the tesponsiveness, functionality and features of our services to meet
our customers’ needs. If we are unable to respond to technological advances and conform to emerging industry standatds in a cost-effective and
timely basis, we could lose customers and there could cease to be a market for our services.

Due to rapidly evolving technologies in the fiber optic network industry and the uncertainty of future government regulation, our
current business plan may become obsolete and we may lose customers and revenue if we are unable to successfully adjust our
products, services and business strategies as required.

In the future, we may become subject to more intense competition due to the development of new technologies, an increased supply of
domestic and international transmission capacity, the consolidation in the industry among local and long distance service providers and the
effects of deregulation resulting from the Telecommunications Act of 1996. The introduction of new services and products or the emergence of
new technologies may change the cost or increase the supply of setvices and products similar to those that it provides. We cannot predict which
of many possible future product and service offerings will be crucial to maintain our competitive position or what expenditures will be required
to develop profitably and provide such products and services. Prices for our services to carriers specifically, and interstate services in general,
may decline over the next several years due primarily to price competition to the extent that network providers continue to install networks that
compete with our fiber optic network. We also believe that there will be technological advances that will permit substantial increases in the
transmission capacity of both new and existing fiber.

We could be liable for violating the intellectual property rights of third parties, which could result in us having to pay a license fee or
damages to third parties, which would reduce our revenues. .

Despite our efforts to protect the intellectual property that is important to the operation of our business, a third party could bring a claim of
infringement against us or any of our material suppliers. If such a claim were settled or adjudicated against us or one of our material suppliers,
we could be forced to pay for a license to continue using the intellectual property. There is no guarantee that we could obtain such a license, ot
that it would be available on reasonable terms. Alternatively, we could be forced to defend ourselves against infringement claims, which could
be costly and which could result in us having to pay damages to third parties.

The cost-effective expansion of our fiber optic network within the Northeast and mid-Atlantic regions is crucial to our business plan,
and depends upon numerous factors beyond our control. '

Our ability to achieve our strategic objectives depends in large part upon the expansion of our fiber optic network within the Northeast and
mid-Atlantic regions. Significant changes in the competitive market in thesc tegions could restrict our growth or ability to offer services in a
cost-effective manner.

We could lose the contract rights upon which we rely to operate and maintain our fiber optic network in the event of bankruptcy
proceedings relating to one or more of the third parties that have granted to us the right to baild and operate our fiber optic network
using their rights-of-way.

The construction and operation of our fiber optic network depends upon contract rights known as indefeasible rights-of-use. Indefeasible rights-
of-use are commonty used in the telecommunications industry, but remain a telatively new concept in property law. Although indefeasible
rights-of-use give the holder a number of rights to control the relevant rights-of-way or fiber optic filaments, legal title remains with the grantor
of the rights. Therefore, the Iegal status of indefeasible rights-of-use remains uncertain, and our indefeasible rights-of-use might be voidable in
the event of bankruptey of the grantor. If we were to lose an indefeasible right-of-use in a key portion of the network, our ability to service
network customers could become seriously impaired and we could be required to incur significant expense to resume the operation of the fiber
optic network in the affected areas.

Despite our existing rights-of-way, we may be forced to make substantial additional payments to the affected landowners or remove
our network from their property, which would significantly harm our business and results of operations.

Our indefeasible rights-of-use and other rights-of-way depend on the grantor’s interest in the property on which our network is located. To the
extent that a grantor of an indefeasible right-of-use or other rights-of-way has a limited easement in the underlying property and not full legal
title, the adequacy of our indefeasible rights-of-use or other rights-of-way could be challenged in court. We believe that the easements granted
by a substantial number of landowners to grantors of our indefeasible rights-of-use are similar in scope to those with respect to which claims
have becn asserted, and we cannot guarantee that claims will not be made in the future.




Because Significan_t portions of our fiber optic network are constructed upon rights-of-way controlled by utility companies and
municipalities which generally place the operation of their facilities ahead of the operation of our fiber optic network, we may be
unable to coustruct and operate our fiber optic network in the affected areas without periodic interruptions and delays caused by the
day-to-day operations of these entities.

Our rights-of-way agreements with Northeast Utilities, Central Maine Power and Consolidated Edison Comnunications, Inc. and various other
entities contain provisions which acknowledge the right of these entities to make the provision of their services to their own customers their top
priority. These companies are required only to exercise “reasonable care” with respect to our facilities and are otherwise free to take whatever
actions they deem appropriate with respect to ensuring or restoring service to their customers, any of which actions could impair operation of
our network. ‘

Regulatory Risks

Municipal regulation of our access to public rights-of-way is subject to change and could impose admiuistrative burdens that would
result in additional costs to us or limit our fiber optic network eperations.

Local governments typically retain the ability to license public rights-of-way, subject to the federal re,quircﬁlent that local governments may not
prohibit the provision of telecommunications services. Changes in local government regulation could impose additional costs on our business
and limit its operations. Local authorities affect the timing and costs associated with its use of public rights-of-way.

Federal regulation of the telecommunications industry is changing rapidly and we could become subject te unfavorable new rules and
requirements which could impose substantial financial and administrative burdens on us and interfere with our ability to successfully
execute our fiber optic network business strategies.

Regulation of the telecommunications industry is changing rapidly. Existing and future federal, state, and local governmental regulations will
greatly influence the viability of our fiber optic network services business. For example, the FCC recently issued rules under the
Telecommunications Act of 1996 which would have required that competitive local exchange catriers, such as NEON, be allowed to purchase
the usc of certain elements of the telecommunications network owned and operated by incumbent local exchange catriers. By purchasing these
clements, competitive local exchange carriers would have been able to provide sefvices in a cost-effective manner. to their customers. However,
the FCC’s rules were challenged in court by the incumbent iocal exchange carriers. The U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
Circuit sided with the incumbent local exchange catriers and has required the FCC to formulate new rules, Any new rules issued by the FCC
may not provide competitive local exchange carriers with the ability to purchase the use of all of the elements of the incumbent local exchange
carrier's network, and as a result the competitive local exchange carriers may not be able to continue providing services to their customers that
they are currently providing,

Revenues from telecommunications provided to end-users sre subject to contributions to the FCC’s universal service fund, and -
Increases In the amount of the required contributions could increase our costs unexpectedly.

While we do not generally provide telecommunications directly to end-users and we are therefore generally exempt from contributing to the
FCC’s Universal Service Fund, some of the customers of our fiber optic network are Intemnet service providers that are treated as end-users by
the FCC. Qur revenues from these customers are therefore currently subject to an assessment of 9.1%. Such assessments vary and may increase
: from quarter to quarter. If the annual contribution amount were less than $10,000, we would qualify for a de minimus exemption from
contribution to the fund. NEON’s required contributions to the Universal Service Fund for the year ended December 31, 2005 and the nine
months ended September 30, 2006 were approximately $264,000 and $233,000, respectively.

[f NEON becomes subject to regulation as a common carrier in the future, we would he subject to additional régulatory requirements,

We do not belicve that NEON is currently a “common carriet,” but that status could change based on differing interpretations of current
egulations, regulatory changes and changes in the way we conduct our fiber optic network business. If NEON becomes regulated as 2 common
arvier by the FCC, it would have to publicize the rates for its services and submit other reports, and would be required to contribute to federal
unds including, but not limited to, those established for Telecommunications Relay Services, for the management of the North American
Yumbering Plan and for Local Number Portability. These regulatory requirements could impose substantial burdens on us.

he Telecommunications Act of 1996 requites incumbent local telephone companies to provide elements of their networks to competitors on
n unbundled basis. The FCC determined that dark fiber is a network element that incumbent local telephone
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companies must provide to others. The availability of this alternative source of supply may increase competition among providers of dark fiber
services and could decrease the demand for our fiber optic network services. '

State regulation of comparies providing telecommunications services varies substantially from state to state and NEON may become
subject to burdensome and restrictive state regulations as it expands its fiber optic network into a broader geographic area, which
could interfere with its operations and our ability to meet our strategic objectives.

Our fiber optic network may be subject to state regulation, which can vary substantially from state to state. Our NEON subsidiaries have
obtained authority to provide intrastate telecommunications services on a competitive common carrier basis in its market area. Therefore, these
subsidiaries are subject to the obligations that applicable law places on all similarly certificated common carriers including the filing of tariffs,
state regulation of certain service offerings, pricing, payment of regulatory fees and reporting requirements. Compliance with these regulatory
obligations, or any of the regulatory requircments of other states to which we might become subject, could be costly and burdensome.
Moteover, some of our rights-of-way depend on NEON's status as a common carrier in these states, and if that status were to be successfully
challenged, those rights-of-way could be terminated.

Risks Relating to Financial Accounting
Failure to hire and train sufficient finance and accounting resources coutd impact our ability to file timely financial reports.

During the fourth quarter of 2006 management identified a material weakness related to insufficient accounting and finance resources. As a
result of the insufficient resources, we did not adequately address certain complex transactions and propetly monitor internal contrals.
Management intends to hire additional accounting and finance employees to address this material weakness. In December 2006, we hired a new
Vice President/Controller. We may not be able to hire and train sufficient finance and accounting personnel in a timely fashion, however. If we
are unable to hire and train additional finance and accounting personnel, we may not be able to file timely financial reports. In such event, we
would also continue to have ineffective internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures.

Fallure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could have a
material adverse effect on our business and stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial
reporting and disclosure controls and procedures and a report by our Independent Registered Public Accountants addressing these assessments.
At September 30, 2006, management identified a material weakness resulting in ineffective internal controls over financial reporting and
ineffective disclosure controls and procedures. Management concluded that additional resources were needed in the accounting and finance
arca to properly address complex accounting issues and properly monitor internal controls. Management also concluded that this material
weakness contributed to an untimely and inadequate evaluation of general computer contro Is. Management intends to address this material
weakness during fiscal year 2007. Until we adequatcly address this material weakness in internal control, we will be unable to conclude that we
have effective interna! controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act. Failure to achicve and maintain an effective internal control environment could have a material adverse effect on our stock price
and our ability to obtain financing if needed.

Risks Related to Our Comman Stock

Bacause our common stock Is thinly traded, prices are more likely to be volatile and it may be harder for our steckhoelders to sell any
sizable number of shares.

Our common stock s currently traded on the American Stock Exchange but an active and liquid trading market has not fully developed and, if
one does develop, it may not continue. The development of an active public trading market depends upon the




existence of willing buyers and sellers and is not within our control. For these reasons, we cannot assure our stockholders that they }vitl hc.ablc
to resell shares of our common stock for a price that is equal to or greater than the price of our common stock on the date the stock is acquired.

If our common stock ceased to be eligible for listing on the American Stock Exchange, the trading prices of the stock could decline and it could
become more difficult to dispose of the stock.

Future sales of our common stock may depress our stock price.

If our stockholders or option holders, tncluding former NEON stockholders and option holders who received our common stock and stock
options in the merger, sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, the market price of our common stock could fall.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The NEON network and its component assets are the principal properties currently owned by NEON or with respect to which NEON has
indefeasible rights of use and teases. NEON owns substantially all of the communications equipment currently utilized in its business and holds
certain ownership interests in the cable comprising the NEON network. NEON's installed fiber optic cable is laid along various rights-of-way
and through the provisions of license agreements. Other fixed assets are located at various leased locations in geographic areas it serves.

NEON’s principal office is in Westborough, Massachusetts. NEON leases this space (approximately 23,500 square feet) pursuant to a lease that
expires on October 31, 2007.

We believe that the facilities that we occupy are adequate for our current needs and that additional space will be available, either through
leasing or purchasing, when nceded.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On January 28, 2002, a derivative suit was filed in the United States District Court for the Southemn District of New York against our company,
as nominal defendant, and certain of our current and former directors and officers. The action is entitled Susan Boney, Individually and
Derivatively on behalf of Nominat Defendant Globix Corp, Plaintiff v. the named former Board of Directors {(pre-Bankruptcy), Defendants and
Globix Corp, a Delaware Corporation, Nominal Defendant. Plaintiffs brought the action against the former board and certain executives
seeking damages and expenses for breach of fiduciary duty for violations of federal and state securitics laws alleging misrepresentations of
Globix's financial performance from 2000 through 2001. We believe that the allegations in this lawsuit are without merit and we intend to
vigorously defend against them. In addition, the plaintiff has not pursued her claims since the filing of the lawsuit. There have been no actions
related to this litigation since September 2002. Although there can be no assurance as to the outcome or effect of this lawsuit, we do not
‘believe, based on currently available information, that the ultimate liabilities, if any, resulting from this lawsuit will have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

On June 25, 2002, we entered into a Stipulation and Order with the lead plaintiffs in a class action lawsuit that had been brought against us and
certain of our directors and officers. The Stipulation and Order provides that 229,452 shares of our common stock and $1,968,000 in aggregate
principal amount of the 11% senior notes will be held in escrow pending the outcome of the class action lawsuit. If a judgment or settiement in
the class action lawsuit had required us to pay an amount in excess of our liability insurance, we would have been required to issue to the class
ection litigants and their attorneys all (in the event that this excess is $10 million or greater) or a portion of (in the event that this cxcess is less
than $10 million) the shares of our common stock and the 11% senior notes being held in escrow. This lawsuit was settled in-2005 for less than
our liability insurance. Accordingly, we expect to distribute the shares of common stock and 11% senior notes held in escrow to Globix
security holders under the plan of reorganization.

In May 2006, we were served with 2 summons and complaint in an action entitled Media Express USA, Led. VS, Glebix Corporation which is
pending in the New York County Supreme Court. The complaint seeks $250,000 on each of two causes of action based on a claim that the
Company failed to provide plaintiff with certain contracted-for services. We have filed an answer denying the material allegations of the
complaint and asserting numerous defenses. We have significant strong legal defenses to the claims and o longer have direct liability since the
claim was assigned as part of the sale of our US hosting business. The plaintiff has failed to appear for a properly noticed deposition.

We are from time to time involved in other legal proceedings in the ordinary course of our business operations. Although there can be no
assurance as to the outcome or effect of any legal proceedings to which we are a party, we do not believe, based on currently available
information, that the ultimate liabilities, if any, arising from any such legal proceedings would have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

' ITEM 4. Submission of Matters To a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

14




PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

On April 13, 2005, Globix stock began (rading on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol “GEX.” Prior to that date, Globix common
stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “GBXX.0B." Quotations on the OTC Bulletin Board reflect inter-dealer prices,
without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

The following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices for Globix common stock as reported on the American Stock Exchange or
the OTC Bulletin Board, as applicable, for the periods indicated:

Fiscal 2008 High Low
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On December 1, 2006, there were 193 record holders of Globix common stock. In addition, the 2002 plan of reorganization provides that the
268 record holders of the common stock of Globix on the effective date of the plan will be entitled to receive, inm exchange for claims in respect
of such stock, their pro rata portion {which, under the terms of the Globix plan of reorganization, may be equal to zero) of 164,600 shares of the
common stock following the effective date. -

Other than payment of dividends on shares of our preferred stock that were cancelled pursuant to our plan of reotganization, we have not
historically paid dividends, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable futare. We currently intend to retain future
camings, if any, to finance operations and expand our business, Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our
board of directors and will be dependent upon our financial condition, operating results, capital requirements and othér factors that our board of
directors deems relevant. It is not anticipated that cash dividends will be paid to the holders of our common stock in the foreseeable future.

Under our 6% series A cumulative convertible preferred stock issued in the NEON merger, dividends accrue (whether or not declared) on each
June 15 and December 15 at a rate of 6% per annum on the liquidation value of $3.60 per share and when and if declared are payable either in
cash or in shares of our common stock valued at $3.60 per share. As of Jupie 15, 2006, a dividend of $838,000 had accrued on this preferred
stock. To date no dividends have been paid. '

In May 2005, the Company issued a warrant to Further Lane Asset Management, LLC to purchase 250,000 shares at a purchase price of $4.00
per share in a private transaction exempt from registration under Scction 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, in exchange for financial advisory
services to be provided to Globix by Further Lane. One twelfih of the warrants become exercisable in each month so that all warrants would
become vested on May 1, 2006. All of the warrants, however, vested upon the early
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termination of the engagement of Further Lane Asset Management, LLC as of January 5, 2006. The warrants cxpite on May 1,2008.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical consolidated financial data as of and for the years ended September 30, 2006, September 30, 2005, September
30, 2004, September 30, 2003, five months ended September 30, 2002 and the seven months ended April 30, 2002 (Predecessor Company),
have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes. As a result of the decision to exit the hosting business,
the results of the hosting operations have been reflected as discontinued operations.

This information should be read together with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this annual report and the notes thereto and the information set forth in “Item 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™.

As a result of the application of fresh start accounting under SOP No. 90-7 as of May 1, 2002 our financial results for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002 include two different bases of accounting and, accordingly, the operating results and cash flows of the Successor Company
and the Predeccssor Company have been separately disclosed. For the purposes of this annual report and the financial statements and related
notes contained in this antiual report, references to the “Predecessor Company” are references to our company for periods prior to April 30,
2002 (the last day of the calendar month in which we emerged from bankruptey) and references to the “Successot Company” are references to
our company for periods subsequent to April 30, 2002. The Successor Company's financial statements are not comparable to the Predecessor
Company’s financial statements.
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(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financiat condition and results of operations should be read together with our consolidated
financial statements and the accompanying notes and “Item 6 - Selected Consolidated Financial Data” appearing elsewhere in this annual
report. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations,
assumptions, estimates and projections about our company and our industry. Our results could differ materially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including the risks and uncertaintics discussed in “Item 1A - Risk Factors™ and
elsewhere in this annual report. The results shown herein are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in any future periods.

OVERVIEW

For the majority of our fiscal year ending on September 30, 2006, our business was comprised of two business units. These units are referred to
as our “hosting” and “transport” businesses. The transport business predominantly sells high capacity bandwidth over our fiber optic network
to ather companies within the telecommunications industry. The hosting business provided various Intemet services to small to large
businesses. The transport services are sold through our subsidiary NEON Communications, lne. (‘'NEON") and the hosting services were sold
through Globix Corporation and its subsidiarics Globix Hosting (UK) Limited and Globix Hosting LLC,

During 2006, Globix conducted a strategic teview which led to the divestiture of our hosting business segment. The procceds from the
divestitures were used to pay down our outstanding debt, and leave us with sufficient funds to support the current operations of our remaining
transport business. As a result of the actions taken during the year ended September 30, 2006 and the following two months, we now are a
company without any substantial long-term indebtedness focused on one business; transport services through our NEON subsidiary. We
contemplate growing this business organically and by taking advantage of possible synetgistic acquisition opportunities.

Our employces are located in New York, New York and Westborough, Massachusetts. Qur principal executive offices are located, at 2200
West Park Drive, Westborough, MA 01581 and the telephone number for this office if (508) 616-7800. Through May 31, 2007 we will alse
maintain offices at 139 Centre Street, New York, New York 10013,

NEON Transport Business

NEON's business strategy is to provide highly reliable data transport services and infrastructure to carriers and a small number of non-carrier
customers, including universities, colleges and financial institutions, in various markets in the Northeast and mid-Atlantic regions, such as
Boston, New York, Philadelphia, Newerk, Baltimore, Washington, DC, Portland, Manchester Albany, Providence, Hartford, and smaller
communities along our netwotk routes. NEON focuses on providing and developing unique network connectivity solutions to customer
locations as well as targeting smaller metropolitan (Tier 2 and 3) markets such as Springfield, Worcester, White Plains, Hackensack, Vienna,
Burlington and Portsmouth. This strategy has allowed NEON to avoid some of the competition and pricing pressutes common in other
segments of the telecommunications business.

Since its merger with Globix, NEON has experienced steady quarter over quarter revenue growth, increasing from $13.2 million in the third
fiscal quarter of 2005, the first full quarter after the merger with Globix, to $17.8M in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, a 34.6% increase.
Organic growth has come from and is expected to continue to come from the growing bandwidth needs of its existing customers and deeper
penetration of existing markets, as well as expansion into new markets and adding new services and targeting new customers.

We will also seck to grow opportunistically through acquisition. In pursuing acquisitions, we will seek companies with similar business models
where there are market and cost synergies. Our ability to complete transactions will be dependent on identifying appropriate parties and being
able to put in place cost effective financing.

We offer the following services:

. LIT FIBER TRANSFORT SERVICES - Over our fiber optic network, we deliver both electrical and optical transmission of
signals on fiber optic telecommunications circuits that are dedicated to our customers. We install and maintain network
equipment that powers, sends and receives the electrical and optical signals. Once network equipment is installed on a fiber, the
network is considered to be “lit”. Specific service offerings inctude: SONET Frivate Line services at bandwidth levels including
DS-3, 0C-3, OC-12, OC-48, and OC-192; Wavelength (DWDM) scrvices enabling flexible and scalable high capacity transport
at 2.5 and 10 Gbps; and Ethemet services via dedicated, point-to-point connectivity offered as Fast Ethernet (FastE) at 50 or 100
Mbps and Gigabit Ethernet (GigE) at 600 or 100¢ Gbps.
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. DARK FIBER SERVICES - In limited instances, we lease individual strands of fiber to customers. When leasing individual
strands of fiber in this manner, we do not provide any of the network equipment that powers, sends and receives signals over the
fibers. This service is referred to as a “dark” service as it does not yet have the ability to transmit electrical or optical signals. Qur
customers install and operate their own network equipment to create their own lit service.

' CQ-LOCATION SERVICES - We offer co-location solutions for customers who choose to own and maintain their own servers
and or optronics, but require the physically secure, climate-controfled envirenment provided by our co-location facilities and
connectivity to our network.

On March 7, 2005, Globix acquired NEON through the merger of a wholly owned subsidiary of Globix with and into NEON, resulting in
NEON becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of Globix.

Globix Hosting Businegs

At the start of our fiscal year, we also operated our Globix hosting business which provided Internet services to small to large-sized businesses
in a broad range of industries, These Intemet services included Intemnet hosting and co-location, managed services, network services and
Internet access. In September 2006, we sold ali of our shares in Globix Hosting (UK) Litmited, cur London based hosting business and, in
November 2006, we sold all of our shares in Globix Hosting LLC, our US hosting business. We no longer have a hosting business.

The hosting business operated Internet data centers in New York, New York; Santa Clara, California; and London England. This business
offered co-location services for customers who owned and maintained their own computer servers but preferred the physically secure, climate-
controlled environment provided by our Internet data centers and connectivity to our network. Through these divested businesses, we also
offered hosting services in a dedicated server environment. The hosting services included providing integrated hardware usage, bandwidth, and
managed computer services to meet customer-specific needs. The managed services included a wide-variety of maintenance administration,
and problem resolution services for many popular operating systems, Internet network devices, software, security solutions, web-based
applications, and streaming media services.

Strategic Transactions

In early 2006, we engaged The Bank Street Group, an investment banking firm, and GVA Williams, e real estate brokerage firm, to help our
board of directors review strategic alternatives related to our businesses and properties. Over the course of a process condicted during the third
and fourth quarters of fiscal 2006, we considered various proposals from numerous potential strategic partners. As a result of this process, we
ultimately complcted three separate transactions to sell our US hosting business, our UK hosting business, and the property where our New
York City headquarters is tocated. We used a portion of the proceeds from these transactions to repay substantially all of our long term
indebtedness. )

On September 6, 2006, we closed the sale of our UK hosting business, The total sales price was $62 million, subject to various working capital
adjustments. Of the total sales price, $3.1 million is being held in an escrow account until March 31, 2008 to cover potential indemnification
claims. We also entered into a transition services agreement with the purchaser of the UK hosting business to provide certain services until
mid-2007.

On September 29, 2006, we completed the sale of our building at 139 Céntre Street, New York, New York. We received approximately $51.8
million in cash, after reducing the agreed $55 million fair market value of the property by $3.2 million in partial satisfaction of amounts owed
to the former owner of the property on account of the sale. From this cash amount, we paid in full an existing mortgage, a remaining payment
owed to the former owner of the property and other fees and expenses. The arrangements relating to the sale of this property include a lease

permitting us to remain in the building until May 31, 2007 and to sublease a portion of the building to the acquirer of our US hosting business.

On QOctober 20, 2006, we paid the entire $5 million principal amount of our 9% Serior Notes due 2008 as well as the accrued interest from
October 1, 2006.

On November 1, 2006, we closed the sale of our US hosting business. The total sales price was $20 million, subject to various working capital
adjustments. Of the total sales price, $2 million is being held in an escrow account until May 31, 2007 to cover potential indemnification
obligations. We also entered into a transition services agreement with the purchaser of the US hosting business to receive and provide certain
services until mid-2007. The buyer of our US hosting business agreed to assume responsibility for the transition services agreement entered
into in connection with the sale of our UK hosting business.
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Also on November 1, 2006, we discharged substantially all of our remaining obligations under our 11% Senior Notes due 2008 and associated

interest payable under the terms of these Notes by depositing the sum of § 76,165,002 with the Indenture Trustee, thereby redeeming the 11%

Senior Notes in full. Gtobix continues to carry a liability of $3,158,437 which may become due under a reserve arrangement established in

_ connection with our bankruptcy proceeding in 2002. Globix is working with the Indenture Trustec to determine how to dispose of any
obligations under this escrow.

Company History

We were founded in 1989 and in 1998 undertook a major expansion plan in order to pursuc opportunities resulting from the growth of the
internet: On March 1, 2002, we filed a voluntary petition under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, together with a prepackaged
plan of reorganization, with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware. We continued to operate in Chapter 11 in the
ordinary course of business and received permission from the bankruptcy court to pay our employees, trade, and certain other creditors in full
and on time, regatdless of whether these claims arosc prior to or after the Chapter 11 filing. On April 8, 2002, the bankruptcy court confirmed
the plan of reorganization. Effective April 25, 2002, all conditions necessary for the plan of reorganization to become effective were satisfied or
waived and we emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection.

On Match 7, 2005, we completed our acquisition of all of the capital stock of NEON valued at $112.9 miilion in exchange for common and
convertible preferred stock of Globix worth approximately $96.2 million, options and warrants of Globix common stock worth approximately
$7.9 million, direct closing costs of approximately $3.4 million and approximately $5.4 million in cash. Simultaneously with the closing of the
acquisition, we exchanged $12.5 million in principal and interest on our 11% senior notes for 4,545,455 shares of common stock.

Prior to its bankruptcy in 2002, NEON incurred substantial indebtedness to finance the construction and development of its network. This debt
was exchanged for common stock or cancelled in NEON's bankruptcy.

On December 13, 2005, we issued and sold $5 million in principal amount of our 9% senior secured notes due May 1, 2008. For further
information about the terms of this financing, see “—Indebtedness,” below.

CRITICAY, ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financiat statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of our financial
statements requires us to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and related disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilitics. We base our accounting estimates on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. However, actual results may vary from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The following isa
summary of our critical accounting policies and estimates:
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue in our NEON business consists primarily of lit fiber services, dark fiber services, and co-location. Revenue from our discontinued
hosting operations consisted primarily of internet hosting, co-location, managed services, network services and Internet access.

We recognize revenue in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission's Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”), No. 104 “Revenue
Recognition”.

The NEON business segment offers sales of lit fiber services (fixed amounts of capacity on fiber optic transmission lines that use optronics
equipment installed by us) and longer term leases of dark fiber (fiber optic transmission lines leased without optronics equipment installed by
us) at fixed cost pricing over multi year terms. Revenues from fiber optic network services are recognized ratably over the term of the
applicable lease agreements with customers, which range from one to 20 years, provided there exists persuasive evidence of an arrangement,
the fee is fixed or determinable and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured. Amounts billed in advance of the setvice
provided are recorded as deferred revenue. We also lease Space to customers at our co-location facilities. Revenues from nonrecurring
installation charges and design, engineering and construction services are recognized ratably over the multi-year network services terms to
which the nonrecurring charges relate provided there exists persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the fee is fixed or determinable and
collectability of the related receivables is rcasonably assured.

The hosting business segment recognizes revenue when delivery has occurred, persuasive evidence of an agréement exists, the fee is fixed or
determinable and collectability is probable. SAB No. 104 expresses the view of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s staff in applying
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to certain revenue recognition issues. Under the provisions of SAB
No. 104, set up and installation revenue are defetred and recognized over the estimated length of the customer relationship, which in the case of
-our Globix segmeat is approximately 36 months. Monthly service revenue under recurring agreements related to Internet hosting, co-location,
network services, Internet access and managed services is recognized over the period that service is provided. Revenue derived from project or
event type managed service engagements is recognized over the life of the engagement. Payments received in advance of providing services are
deferred until the period that these services are provided.

COST OF REVENUE

Cost of revenue for fiber services consists primarily of right of way fees, dark fiber leases, real estate and co-location leases, purchase of fast
mile circuit services and network operations and maintenance costs. Right of way fees are paid primarily to utilities and public and private
eatities for the right to place fiber optic cable on their structures and property. Fiber leases are fees paid to other telecommunications providers
for the use of their dark fiber over which we provide transport services. We lease real estate and co-location space to allow placement of
network equipment to power our network. Last mile circuit services consist of services from other carriers and local phone companies to extend
transport services beyond our network to a customer location. Network operations and maintenance consists primarily of labor, contractor
services and utility costs.

Within our discontinucd hosting operations, cost of revenue for Internet services consists primarily of telecommunications costs for Internet

 eccess and managed hosting, payroll and occupancy which we incur in support of our network operations, systems and customer services and
the cost of purchased hardware and software. Payroll costs allocated to cost of revenue are based on the primary activity of the department such
as maintaining the network, customer support and systems operations. Occupancy costs allocated to cost of revenue are based primarily on the
square footage of our various facilities. Cost of revenue excludes depreciation and amortization. Telecommunications costs include the cost of
providing local loop for connecting dedicated access customers to our network, leased line and associated costs related to connecting with our
pecring partners and costs associated with network services connecting our facilities to its network and aggregating network facilities.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Jur intangible assets are as follows:

. trademarks and trade name;
. revenue backlog; and
. customer contracts and relationships.

22




We amortize intangibl¢ assets by the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Trademarks and trade name are amortized over a
period of 5 years, revenue backlog is amortized over 10 years and the customer contracts and relationships are amortized over 10 years.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

-Property, plant and equipment arc stated at depreciated historical cost adjusted for impairment and include fresh start adjustments. All
identifiable assets recognized in accordance with fresh start accounting were recorded at the April 2002 effective date of the plan of
reorganization based upon an independent appraisal. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method for financial reporting purpases
and accelerated methods for income tax purposes. The estimated useful lives of property are as follows:

YEARS

R )

Leasehold improvements arc amortized over the term of the lease or life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Maintenance and repairs are charged
to expense as incurred. The cost of additions and betterments are capitalized. The cost and related accumulated depreciation of property retired
ot sold are removed from the applicable accounts and any gain or loss is taken into income.

Software obtained for internal use is stated at depreciated historical cost adjusted for impairments and fresh start adjustments and is depreciated
using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life.

Our long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the
future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requ ires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilitics, revenue and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and
lisbilities. Use of estimates and assumptions include, but is not limited to, purchase price allocation, allowance for doubtful accounts, credit
reserve, the useful lives and ultimate realizability of property, equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax valuation allowance and payroll and
occupancy cost allocation between cost of revenue and selling, gencral and administrative expenses. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed
periodically and the cffects of revisions are reflected in the period that they are determined to be necessary. Actual results may vary from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS AND CREDIT RESERVE

At each reporting period we evaluate on a specific basis the economic condition of our customers and their ability and intent to pay their debt.
If such evaluation shows that it is probable that a customer will not settle his full obligation, a reserve against accounts receivable in general
and administrative expense is recorded for the questionable amount. We also maintain a general bad debt reserve, which is based on the aging
of our customers’ receivables. In addition, during each reporting period we must make estimates of potential future credits, which will be
issued in respect of current revenues, We analyze historical credits and changes in customer demands regarding our cutrent billings when
evaluating credit reserves. If such analysis shows that it is probable that a credit will be issued, we reserve the estimated credit amount against
revenues in the current period. As of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005 the balance of bad debt reserve amounted to approximately
$0.9 million and $2.0 million, respectively.

ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our income tax expense in each of the
jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves us estimating our actual current tax exposure together with
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-assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items, such as accruals and teserves, for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assets, which are included within our consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood
that our deferved tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must
establish a valuation allowance. Management currently estimates that it is more likely than not that these assets will not be realized in the
foresceable future and, accordingly, a 100% valuation allowance is recorded against the deferred tax assets. Management estimates that no
taxes will be due related to the gains recorded on the sale of the UK hosting business and the sale of the building at 139 Centre Street, New
York, New York. As such no tax expense has been recorded on these transactions. '

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 6, 2006, we closed the sale of our UK hosting business. The total sales pricc was $62 million, subject to various working capital
adjustments. Of the total sales price, $3.1 million is being held in an escrow account until March 31, 2008 to cover potential indemnification
claims. We also cntered into a transition services agreement with the purchaser of the UK hosting business to provide certain services until
mid-2007. The pre-tax and after tax gain on the disposition of the UK hosting business was approximately $46.2 million. The results of
operations of the UK hosting business are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

As of September 30, 2006, accounting criteria for the classification of our US hosting business had been met which resulted in the results of
operations of the US hosting business being reparted as discontinued operations for all periods presented and the assets and Labilities being
reflected as held for sale at September 30, 2006. On November 1, 2006, we closed the sale of our US hosting business. The total sales price was
$20 million, subject to vatious working capital adjustments, Of the total sales price, $2 million is being held in an escrow account until May 31,
2007 to cover potential indemnification claims. We also entered into a transition services agreement with the purchaser of the US hosting
business to receive and provide certain services until mid-2007. The buyer of our US hosting business agreed to provide the services called for
under the transition services agreement we had entered into in connection with the sale of our UK hosting business. The results of operations of
the US hosting business are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented and the assets and liabilities are reflected as held for
‘sale at September 30, 2006.

Revenue from discontinued operations, operating income from discontinued operations, and income/loss from discontinued operations for the
years ended September 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 are as follows:

(in thousands) 1006 2005 2004

perating

[REomME G AL i ‘ ST S B D B S R e A S DA e R T

The results of discontinued operations are.not included in the discussions below entitled “Results of Operations."”

1 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 COMPARED TO THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

REVENUE, NET. Revenue from continuing operations for the year ended September 30, 2006 increased 116.8% or approximately $35.8
niltion to $66.4 million from $30.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2005. This growth in revenue is primarily attributable to a full
rear of activity in our continuing NEON operations in 2006 versus seven months of activity in 2005,

tevenue breakdown for the major service lines are as follows.

Levenue from Lit Fiber Services for the year ended September 30, 2006 increased 123.8%, or approximately $33.0 million, to $59.6 million
tom $26.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2005. Revenue from Dark Fiber Services for the year ended September 30, 2006
ncreased 54.4%, or approximately $1.7 million, to $4.8 million from $3.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2005. Revenue from Co-
Acation increased by $1.1 million, or 122.2%, to $2.0 million in the year ended September 30, 2006 compared to $0.9 million in the same
<riod in fiscal year 2005. The growth in these service lines is primarily attributable to a full year of activity in our continuing NEON
perations in 2006 versus seven months of activity in 2005.

‘OST OF REVENUE. Cost of revenue for the year ended September 30, 2006 increased 101.0%, or $17.9 million, to $35.7 million from $17.8
illion for the year ended September 30, 2005. This increase is the result of a fult year of activity in the continuing
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NEON Pperations in 2006 as compared to the seven months of activity included in the year ended September 30, 2005. Qur gross margins from
continuing operations for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 were 46.3% and 42.0%, respectively. In 2006, incremental sales to
existing customers cxceeded the related incremental costs resulting in higher margins.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $27.0 million for the year ended September
30, 2006 as compared to $18.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2005. This increase included $4.3 million of selling, general and
administrative expenses altributable to a full year of activity in our continuing NEON operations. The remaining increase of $4.4 million is
primatily the result of the $2.6 million recognition of expense related to option vesting as requircd under SFAS 123(R) in the year ended
Septernber 30, 2006, an increase of $1.3 million in professional fees related to Sarbanes Oxley, Tax, Legal and Audit work, and an increase of
$0.3 million in Director’s fees due to an increased number of meetings associated with our strategic alternative process.

LOSS ON THE SALE OF CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS BUILDING . During Scptember 2006 we completed the sale of our building at 139
Centre Strect, New York, New York. We received approximately $51.8 million in cash, after reducing the agreed $55 million fair market value
of the property by $3.2 million in partial satisfaction of amounts owed to the former owner of the property on account of the sale. From this
amount we paid in full an existing mortgage and other fees and expenses. The loss on the disposition of our headquartets building was $3.8
million.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended September 30, 2006 were $15.4 million
compared to $8.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2005. This increase of $6.6 million is primarily the result of the full year of activity
in our continning NEON operations in 2006 versus seven months of activity in 2005.

INTEREST AND FINANCING EXPENSES. Interest and financing expense for the ycar ended September 30, 2006 was $10.6 million, compared
to $9.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2005. This increase is primarily the result of our higher average outstanding balance of the
11% senior notes compared to the same period in 2005 and our issuance of the 9% senior notes in December 2006,

INTEREST INCOME. Interest income for the year ended September 30, 2006 was $0.5 million, compared to $0.2 million for the year ended
September 30, 2005,

OTHER INCOME/EXPENSE, NET. Othet income for the year ended September 30, 2006 was $1.1 mitlion, compared to other expense of $0.7
million for the year ended September 30, 2005. This difference is primarily related to an increase in rental income during the year ended
September 30, 2006 and the recognition of a $0.9 million loss on the sale of marketable securities during the year ended September 30, 2005.

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS. As a result of the factors described above, we reported a net income
attributable to common stockholders of $23.8 million, or $0.49 basic and diluted income per share attributable to common stockholders, for the
year ended September 30, 2006, as compared to a net loss attributable to common stockholders of $30.9 million, or $0.89 basic and diluted loss
pet share attributable to common stockholders, for the year ended September 30, 2005. .

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

On March 7, 2005, we completed our acquisition of NEON. As a result of the acquisition on March 7 2005, NEON results have been included
in operating results since that date. As the results from our former Globix segment have been reclassified as discontinued operations, no
meaningful comparison of revenue or cost of revenue is available for fiscal year comparisons between 2005 and 2004.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Sciling, general and administrative expenses increased by approximately $8.3 million to $183
million as compared to $10.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2004, The increase included $7.5 million of selling, general and
administrative expenses for NEON. The remaining increase of $0.8 million is primarily the result of a litigation settlement resulting in $0.8
million of expense in the year ended September 30, 2005.

LOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS. There were no impairment charges for the year ended September 30, 2005. Impairment charges for the
year ended September 30, 2004 amounted to approximately $18.0 million as a result of the write-down of the cost basis of Globix's property
located at 415 Greenwich Street in New York, NY to its market value less cost to sell of approximately $11.5 million. The sale of the 415
Greenwich Street property was consummated on January 22, 2004 for total cash consideration of $60.0 millien.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization increased $6.0 million to $8.8 million for the year ended September
30, 2005, as compared to $2.8 million in the year ended September 30, 2004. The increase is primarily the result of the
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acquisition of NEON.

INTEREST AND FINANCING EXPENSES. Interest and financing expense for the year ended September 30, 2005 was $9.7 million, compared
to $11.4 million for the same period in 2004. The decrease was attributable to the lower average balance of the 11% senior notes during the
year ended September 30, 2005 compared to the same petiod in 2004 ‘

INTEREST INCOME. Interest income for the year ended September 30, 2005 was $0.2 million, compared to $0.3 million, for the same period
in 2003.

OTHER INCOME/EXPENSE, NET. Other expense for the year ended September 30, 2005 was $0.7 million, compared (o other income of $2.0
million, for the same period in 2004. The difference included the recognition of a loss of $0.9 million on the sale of marketable securitics
during the year ended September 30, 2005.

GAIN (LOSS) ON DISCHARGE OF DERT. Loss on discharge of debt for the year ended September 30, 2005 was $3.2 million compared to a
gain of $1.7 million in year ended Septernber 30, 2004. The $3.2 miilion loss was the direct result of the debt for equity swap. The $1.7 million
gain for the year ended September 30, 2004 was a direct result of the buyback of $7.0 million face value 11% senior notes plus accrued interest
of $0.3 million for $5.6 million in Qctober of 2003. ‘

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS. As a result of the factors described above and including the results from our
discontinued operations, we reported net loss attributable to common stockholders of $30.9 million, or $0.89 basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to common stockholders, for the year ended September 30, 2005, as compared to a net loss attributable to common stockholders of
$41.4 million, or $2.51 basic and dituted loss attributable to common stockholders per share, for the year ended September 30, 2004.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of September 30, 2006, our working capital was $73,394,000 as compared to a working deficit of $8,378,000 as of September 30, 2005, The
increase in working capital as of September 30, 2006 was primarily due to cash received from the disposition of our NY headquarters and UK
hosting business.

As of September 30, 2006 our cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately $88.1 million, or an increasé of approximately $79.1
million from last ycar. As a result of the net cash proceeds from the sale of our UK hosting business of $62.6 million, our 139 Centre Street
property of $22.0 million, and our US hosting business of $18.1 million, we paid down substantially all of our $83.4 million indebtedness
related to our 11% and 9% senior notes. Therefore, we believe that the remaitiing cash balance is sufficient to meet our fiscal 2007 anticipated
day to day operating expenses, commitments, working capital and capital expenditures, :

We have commitments under standby letters of credit, issued primarily to secure certain leases, totaling approximately $7.1 million at
September 30, 2006. In addition, $3.1 million is being held in an escrow account until March 3 1, 2008 to cover post-closing adjustments to the
UK hosting business purchase price and indemnification claims. We have no financial guarantees or other arrangements securing the
obligations of any third parties or related parties other than our subsidiaries. ;

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

As of September 30, 2006, we had cash and cash equivalents, short-term and long-term investments totaling approximately $88.1 million
compared to approximately $9.1 million on September 30, 2005. This increase of $79.0 million was mainly attributable to operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities as desctibed below. '

OPERATING ACTIVITIES. Net cash provided by operating activities during the year ended September 30, 2006 was approximately $10.9
million as compared to $1.1 million during the year ended September 30, 2005, or a $9.8 million increase. The increase in operating cash flow
was due primarily to improved performance in our transport and hosting businesses.

We had non-cash depreciation and amortization expenses of $23.9 million, 2 non-cash loss on the sale of our corporate headquarters of $3.8
million, and a $46.2 million non-cash gain on the sale of cur UK hosting business. In 2006, changes in assets and liabilities resulted in an
increase to operating cash flow of approximately $2.4 million.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES. Net cash provided by investing activities during the year ended September 30, 2006 was $82.8 million. This was
sttributable primarily to $55.0 million in proceeds from the sale of our NY headquarters and the $64.2 million in proceeds from the sale of our
UK hesting business partially offset by cash outlays of approximately $14.8 million for closing costs associated with the two deals and $23.1
willion paid for capital expenditures.
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES. Net cash used in financing activitics during the year ended September 30, 2006 was $14.8 million, which was
primarily attributable to the repayments of mortgage payable and capital lease obligations of $19.8 million and partially offset by the proceeds
received from the issuance of our 9% senior notes in December 2005.

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

As of September 30, 2005, we had cash and cash equivalents, short-term and fong-term investments totaling to approximately $9.1 million
compared to approximately $21.7 million on September 30, 2004. This decrease of $12.6 million included a $3.1 million decrease in cash and
cash equivalents to $9.0 million at September 30, 2005 from $12.1 million at September 30, 2004. This was mainly attributable to operating
activities, investing activities and financing activities as described below.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES. Net cash provided by operating activities during the year ended September 30, 2005 was approximately $1.1
million in comparison to $1.6 million, which was used in operating activities during the year ended September 30, 2004. The improvement in
our cash burn is due to the improvement in our operating results and our ongoing focus on cost control by adjusting our expenditure rate to our
revenues.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES. Net cash used in investing activities during the year ended September 30, 2005 was §3.5 million. This was
attributable primarily to $16.4 million paid for capital expenditures. This was partially offset by the proceeds from the sale of investments in
short-term and long-term investments of $9.8 million and the net cash proceeds from the acquisition of NEON of $2.8 million.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES. Net cash used in financing activities during the year ended September 30, 2005 was $0.7 million, which was
attributable to the repayments of mortgage payable and capital lease obligations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
We have evaluated our results of operations based on one reportable scgment in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information™. As a result of the acquisition of NEON on March 7, 2005 and the disposition of UK hosting and US

hosting businesses, we now have one reportable segment to cvaluate. .

Although we operate in one reportable segment, there are 3 major service lines, as listed below. The breakdown of revenues for each service
line is as follows:

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 34, SEPTEMBER 30,

1006 1005 2004

T O T B T
S R T N

Dark ﬁbcrscrv’iccs . - _ . _ 4,809 o
R R P R P R A N D

Revenue, net : $ 66,429 $ 30,646 $ -

INCOME TAXES

We are in an accumulated loss position for both financial and income tax reporting purposes. Globix has U.S. Federal income tax loss
carryforwards of approximately $192.6 million and state income tax loss carryforwards of approximately $244.1 million at September 30,
2006. NEON has U.S. Federal incotme tax loss carryforwards of approximately $136.7 million and state fricome tax loss carryforwards of
approximately $82.2 million at September 30, 2006, These Federal net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards expire beginning in 2020 and
will be fully expired after 2025. The U.S. Federal income tax loss carryforwards were reduced upon emergence from bankruptcy due to the
Intemnal Revenue Code’s rules and regulations related to the cancellation of indebtedness income that is excluded from taxable income.
Changes in the ownership of NEON securities as a result of NEON's plan of reorganization have caused there to be an annual limitation on the
use of net operating loss carryforwards that arose prior to the effective date of NEON's plan of reorganization. Changes in the ownership of the
Globix securities as a result of its plan of recorganization have caused there to be an annual limitation on the use of NOL carryforwards that
grose prior to the effective date of its plan of reorganization. As a result of the merger with NEON and the open market divestiture of
significant amounts of shares of Globix stock by former NEON shareholders, both Globix and NEON expericnced ownership changes in
March 2005 and April 2006, respectively. The availability of NOL carryforwards to reduce our future Federal income tax liability is subject to
limitations under Section 382 of the Intemal Revenue Code. Due to these limitations, $139.2 million of the $329.3 million in Federal NOL
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carryforwards will be available for possible utilization for Federal income tax purposes. This amount is computed based upon the estimated
NOL gencrated after the April 2006 ownership change of NEON plus the $6.5 million annual limitation resulting from that change of
owncrship. Subsequent ownership changes, if any, could impose additional limitations on our NOL camryforwards. The application of the Code
in this area is subject to interpretation by the Intemnal Revenue Service (“IRS"). The NOL carryforwards are subject to examination by the IRS
and are thus subject to adjustment of disallowance resulting from any such [RS examination Additional limitations would be imposed as a
result of any such ownership change which may increase our U.S. federal income tax liability.

For financial reporting purposes, deferred tax assets at September 30, 2006 and 2005 are fully offset by a valvation allowance due to the
uncertainty of our ability to realize income tax benefits by generating taxable income in the future. We estimate that the no taxes will be due
related to the pains recorded on the sale of the UK hosting business and the sale of the building at 139 Centre Street, New York, New York. As
such, no tax expense has been recorded on these transactions. '

Our emergence from bankruptey in fiscaf 2002 did not create & new tax reporting entity. Accordingty, the adjustments required to adopt fresh
start accounting are not applicable for our tax reporting and therefore, deferred tax items were recognized concurrently with the recognition of
the respective fresh start accounting adjustments. In addition pursuant to SOP No. 90-7, reversals of the valuation allowance recorded against
deferred tax assets that existed as of the emergence date will first reduce intangibles until exhausted and thereafter are reported as additional
paid in capital as opposed to income tax expense. The balance of the valuation allowance for which this treatment is required was
approximately $80.4 million at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

INDEBTEDNESS

Our indebtedness at September 30, 2006 consisted of approximately $74.9 million in aggregate principal amount of our 11% senior notes,
approximately $5.0 million in aggregate amount of our 9% senjor notes and approximately $3.5 million in related accrued interest. Total
borrowings at September 30, 2006 were approximately $83.4 milfion.

On October 20, 2006 we prepaid $5.0 million in outstanding principal and accrued interest on our 9% senior notes due 2008, reflecting the full
amount due noteholders. On November 1, 2006 we prepaid $76.2 million in outstanding principal and accrued interest on our 11% senior notes
due 2008, reflecting substantially all of the amount due noteholders, We continue to carry a liability of $3.2 million which may be payable
pursuant to an escrow amrangement established in 2002. We are working with the trustee under the indenture govemning the 11% senior notes to
determine how to dispose of any ebligations under this escrow.

COMMITMENTS

As of September 30, 2006, we had fiber leases for various segments of its network under operating leases that expire at various dates through
December 2034, Additionally, we have various agreements to lease facilities and equipment and are obligated to make future minimum lease
payments of approximately $24.9 million on operating leascs expiring in varicus years through 2017,

As of September 30, 2006 we had contractual obligations due in future periods as follows:

LESS THAN I AFTER 5
(in thousands) TOTAL YEAR 1.3 YEARS . &S5YEARS YEARS
TSR Y R e e i Ve YT e PR A S B iy N
L o T R T S Ty
11% senior notes 74875 §

e R R G A Fe
Senior notes - Accrued Interest .
A e A R TG
Siber Leases

lotal Contractual Cash Qbligations s 300,336 % 19481 3§ 110,028 § 28,152 & 142,675

n addition to the commitments listed, we have commitments under standby letters of credit, issued primarily to secure certain leases, totaled
pproximately $7.1 million at September 30, 2006.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONCUNCEMENTS

In Septerber 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (Topic IN). “Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” (“SAB No. 108). SAB No. 108 addresses how the cffect of prior-year uncorrected
misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements in current-year financial statements. SAB No. 108 requires SEC
registrants (i) to quantify misstatements using a combined approach which considers both the balance-sheet and income-statement approaches,
{if) to evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying an etror that is material in light of relevant quantitative and qualitative factors,
and (ifi} to adjust their nancial statements if the new combined approach results in a conclusion that an efror is material. SAB No. 108
addresses the mechanics of correcting misstatements that include effects from prior years. [t indicates that the current-year correction of a
material ervor that includes prior-year effects may result in the need to correct prior-year financial staternents even if the misstatement in the
prior year or years is considered immaterial. Any prior-year financial statements found to be materially misstated in years subsequent to the
issuance of SAB No. 108 would be restated in accordance with SFAS No. 154, “dccounting Changes and Ervor Corrections.” Because the
combined approach represents a change in practice, the SEC staff will not require registrants that followed an acceptable approach in the past to
restate prior years' historical financials statements. Rather, these registrants can report the cumulative effect of adopting the new approach as an
adjustment to the current year's beginning balance of retained earnings. If the new approach is adopted in a quarter other than the first quarter,
financial statements for prior interim periods within the year of adoption may need to be restated. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years
ending after November 15, 2006, which for the Company would be its fiscal year beginning October 1, 2007. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of SAB No. 108.

. In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures” (“SFAS No. 157").

SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP),
expands disclosures about fair value measurements, and applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, the FASB anticipates that for some entities, the
application of SFAS No. 157 will change current practice. SFAS No, 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007, which for the Company would be its fiscal year beginning October 1, 2008.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 48, dccounting for Uncertainty in fncome Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 prescribes detailed guidance for the financial statement recognition, measurement and disclosure of
uncertain tax positions recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “dccounting for income Taxes.’
Tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the effective date to be recognized upon the adoption of FIN 48 and in
subsequent periods. FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December I5, 2006, which for us would be our fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2007, and the provisions of FIN 48 will be applied to all tax positions upon initial adoption of the Interpretation. The
cumulative effect of applying the provisions of this Interpretation will be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamings
for that fiscal year. The Company is currently evaluating the implementation of FIN 48 and whether it will have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments — an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 133 and 140.” SFAS No. 155 allows companies to elect to measure at fair value entire financial instruments containing
embedded derivatives that would otherwise have to be accounted for separately. It also requires companies to identify interests in securitized
financial assets that are freestanding derivatives or contain embedded derivatives that would have to be accounted for separately, clarifics
which interest- and principal-only strips are subject to SFAS No. 133, and amends SFAS No. 140 to revise the conditions of a qualifying
special purpose entity due to the new requirement to identify whether interests in securitized financial assets are freestanding derivatives or
contain embedded derivatives. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired, issued or subject to a remeasurement event
after the beginning of a company’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006, The Company does not expect adaption of SFAS No.
155 to have a material effect on its results of operations or financial position.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK
At September 30, 2006, $10.6 mitlion of our cash and investments were restricted in accordance with the terms of certain collateral obligations.

We believe that we have limited cxposure to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. The fair value of our investment
portfolio or related income would not be significantly impacted by changes in interest rates due mainly to the short-term nature of the majority
of our investment portfolio. An increase or decrease in interest rates would not significantly increase or decrease interest expense on debt
obligations, duc to the fixed naturc of the substantial majority of aur debt obligations.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statcments are set forth herein beginning on page F-1.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIALS
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we
have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule t32-15(b) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that these disclosure
controls and procedures are ineffective as a result of the following material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. During the
fourth quarter of 2006, we identified a material weakness in internal controls related to insufficient accounting and finance resources.
Management has concluded that additional accounting and finance resources are required. As a result of the insufficient resources the Company
did not adequately address the accounting and disclosures for complex transactions, propetly monitor internal controls and did not perform a
timely and adequate evatuation of general computer contrels. As a result of the material weakness there were changes in our internal control
over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2006 that may materially affect our intemal control over financial reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal contro! over financial reporting for the Company. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of cur financial reporting for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Intemal control over financial reporting
includes maintaining records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions; providing reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our financial statements; providing reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures
of company assets are made in accordance with management authorization; and providing reasonable assurance that unautherized acquisition,
use or disposition of company assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements would be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a
misstatement of our financial stateruents would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our intemal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation,
management concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was ineffective for the year ended September 30, 2006, As
indicated above, during the fourth quarter management identified a material weakness in intemnal control ever financial reporting. This material
weakness occurred due to deficiencies in both the design and operating effectiveness of the intemnal control environment.

Management identified and is strengthening the effectiveness and design of intemnal controls related to the material weakness. Recently a Vice
President/Controller was hired. The new Vice President/Controller has substantial experience in financial reporting matters, internal centrols
and Sarbanes Oxley. He is a Certified Public Accountant, and a former partner in a national public accounting firm. Most recently, he was the
Vice President, Controtler and Chief Accounting Officer of a Fortune 500 company. In that role he was responsible for implementation and
continued compliance of the requirements of the Sarbanes Oxley regulations. Management is in the process of hiring additional persennel in
the accounting and finance areas. The hiring process is focused on hiring employees with expertise in Sarbanes Oxley compliance, financial
reporting and internal auditing. This finance and accounting group will be responsible for ensuring compliance with all aspects of Sarbanes
Oxiey, ensuring ali significant risks over financial reporting are identified and internal controls to address those risks are identificd, evaluated,
tested and remediated. An internal audit staff witl be hired to perform testing of Sarbanes Oxley compliance and other customary intemal
control related functions. Management also will perform timely, adequate evaluation and testing of general computer controls during fiscal year
2007,

Amper, Politziner & Mattia, P.C. has audited this assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. The report of their findings
follows management's report.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the consolidated financial statements and other financial information included in
this annual report on Form 10-K. Such financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Accounting principles are selected and information is reported which, using management’s best judgment and estimates, present fairly Globix's
consolidated financial position, resulis of operations and cash flows.

Globix’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision of management, including our principal executive officer and our
principal financial officer Globix conducted an evaluation of the cffectiveness of intemnal controls over financial reporting based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSQ) Based on this
assessment, as a result of the material weakness identified below, management concluded that Globix did not maintain an effective internal
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, :

During the fourth quarter of 2006, management identified a material weakness in internal controls related to insufficient accounting and
financial resources. Management has concluded that additional accounting and finance resources are required. As a result of the insufficient
resources the Company did not adequately address the accounting and disclosures for complex transactions, propetly monitor internal controls
and did not perform a timely and adequate evaluation of genefal computer controls.

Amper, Politziner & Mattia, P.C., an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited and reported on the conselidated financial
statements of Globix Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries, management's assessment of the effectiveness of Globix's intemal control aver
financial reporting and the effectiveness of Globix's internal control over financial reporting. The reports of the independent auditors ate
contained in this Annual Report,

/s/ Peter K. Stevenson /sf Eric J, Sandman

Peter K. Stevenson Eric J, Sandman
Chief Executive Officer . Chief Financial Officer
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.Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Te the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Globix Corporation

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Controls over financial reporting,
that Globix and Subsidiaries (the Company) did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, based
on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committce of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSQ). The Company's management is responsible for maintaining cffective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the cflcctiveness of intemal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We belicve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. A company's intemal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) ptovide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deterorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that resuits in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been
identified and included in management's assessment. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of
audit tests applied in our audit of the 2006 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated December 28, 2006, on those
financial statements.

The Company had inadequate resources in the accounting/finance function, Significant turnover of personne! caused the Company to not
adequately address accounting and disclosure requiremients for complex and unusual transactions, monitoring of internal controls required by
COSO and did not perform a timely and adequate evaluation of general computet controls.

" In our opinion, management's assessment that Globix Corporation did not maintain effective internal contral over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Also, in our opinion, because of the effects of the material
weakness described above on the achievement of the objective of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Trading Commission (COS0y}.

We do not express an opinion ot any other form of assurance on management's statements relating to new controls being implemented and
tested.

/s/ Amper, Politziner & Mattia, P.C.

December 28, 2006
Edison, New Jersey
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not app_licable.
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. PARTIH

Items 10 through 14 (except for information in response to [tem 406 of Regulation S-K) are incorporated by reference to our proxy statement
for our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Globix Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which applies to directors, executive officers and employees, is included as Exhibit 14 to
this annual report on Form 10-K.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIALS SCHEDULES
Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

See the financial statements beginning on page F-1. See Schedule [1 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts on page F-35.

{c) Exhibits

EXHIBIT No. EXHIBIT DESCRIPTION

21 Form of Securities Exchange Agreement, dated September 15, 2004 )]

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Globix (2)

32 " Certificate of Designation of Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Oll‘u:r Special Rights of
Preferred Stock and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of 6% Series A Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock of Globix Corporation (3)

33 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Globix (2)

4.1 Form of Warrant issued to affiliates of Communication Technology Advisors (3}

4.2 Form of Globix Corporation Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock 3)

10.1 Registration Rights Agreement between Globix and the holders of Globix’s securities party thereto, dated as of
April 23, 2002 (3)

10.2 Form of Employment Agreement, dated Qctober 31, 2005, between Globix and Ted S. Lodge (4)

10.3 Letter agreement, dated October 18, 2006, between Globix and Ted S. Lodge (5)

10.3 Employment Agreement, dated September 15, 2005, between Globix and Peter K. Stevenson (6}

10.4 Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated January 4, 2006, between Globix and Peter K. Stevenson €}

10.5 Letter agreement, dated September 20, 2005, between Globix and Gene M. Bauer (6)

10.6 Globix Corporation 2003 Stock Option Plan, as amended (8)

10.7 Neon Communications, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan (3)

10.8 First Amendment to Neon Communications, Ine. Stock Incentive Plan (3}

10.9 Neon Communications, Inc. 2003 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (3)

10.10 First Amendment to Neon Communications, Inc. 2003 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (3}

10.11 2005 cash incentive plan (9)

10.12 Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2006 among Globix Hosting, LLC, Globix Corporation, Quality
Technology Services Holding, L.L.C. and Quality Investment Properties Tech Centre Holding, LLC (10)

10.13 Form of Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated Septetmber 11, 2006 between Globix Corporation and Angelo
Gordon Real Estate Inc. (11) : .

10.14 Purchase Agreement, dated as of 20 August, 2006 between Globix Corporation and Inhoco 3236 plc (12)

10.15 Form of Second Amended and Restated Agrecment for the Provision of Fiber Optic Facilities and Services

between Northeast Utilities Service Company, The Connecticut Light & Power Company, Western
Massachusetts Electric Company, Public Service Company of New Hampshire, and Neon Optica, Inc. as
Successor in Interest to Necom LLC as of December 23, 2002 - Phase One )
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10.16

10.17

14
21
k1IN
312
321
32.2

Form of Second Amended and Restated Agreement for the Provision of Fiber Optic Facilities and Services
between Northeast Utilities Service Company, The Connecticut Light & Power Company, Western
Massachusetts Electric Company, Public Service Company of New Hampshire, and Neon Optica, Inc. as
Successor in Interest to Necom LLC as of December 23, 2002 - Phase Two (3)

Form of Agreement Concerning the Reimbursement of Fees Among The Connecticut Light & Power Company
Western Massachusetts Electric Company, Public Service Company of New Hampshire and Mode
1 Communications, Inc. and Neon Optica, Inc. dated as of November §, 2004 (3)

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (8)

List of Subsidiaries

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Centification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350

** Confidential treatment granted for certain portions of this Exhibit pursuant to Rule 406 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933.
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(10
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(12)

Incomporated by reference to our Current Report on Form §-K filed on Qctober 13, 2004,

[ncorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 15, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 13, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form §-K filed on November 3, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Qctober 23, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to our Annua! Report on Form 10-K filed on December 27, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 9, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on January 27, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the description in Item 1.01 of the Company's Report on Form 8-K filed on September 19, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form §-K filed on October 6, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 15, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 24, 2006.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant t9 the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GLOBIX CORPORATION

By: /8/ PETER K. STEVENSON

Peter K. Stevenson
President, Chief Executive Officer
Date: December 28, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated: ’

/5/ PETER K. STEVENSON

Peter K. Stevenson

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

(principal executive officer)

Date: December 28, 2006

A8/ ERIC J. SANDMAN

Eric J. Sandman

Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial and accounting officer)
"Date: December 28, 2006

/S/TED §. LODGE

Ted §. Lodge
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Chairman
Date: December 28, 2006

/S/ JOSE A. CECIN JR.

Jose A. Cecin Jr.
Director
Date: December 28, 2006

/8/ JOHN FORSGREN

Jehn Forsgren
Director
Date: December 28, 2006

/5/ PETER L. HERZIG

Peter L. Herzig
Director
Date: December 28, 2006
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/8/ STEVEN LAMPE

Steven Lampe
Director
Date: December 28, 2006

/S/ STEVEN G. SINGER

Steven . Singer
Director
Date: December 28, 2006

/5/ RAYMOND L. STEELE

Raymond L. Steele
Director
Date: December 28, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Globix Cerporation

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Globix Corporation (a Delaware Corporation) and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2006
and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for
cach of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amouats and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Glubix
Cotporation and their Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, and their consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness
of Globix Corporation’s internal contro! over financial reporting as of Septernber 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our repart dated December 28,
2006, expressed an adverse opinion thereon,

In connection with our audits of the financial statements referred to above, we audited Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. In our
opinion, the financial schedule, when considered in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects,
the information stated therein. .

/sf Amper, Politziner & Mattia, P.C.

December 28, 2000
Ediscon, New Jersey




GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)

SEFTEMBER 14,

2006 2005

5 e
Prc aid. expcnses and othcr current assets

B it R i AT R
Current portion of assets held for sale 6,763 —
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-3







GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENBED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEFTEMBER 30, SEFPTEMBER 3¢,
2006 1005 2004

’“‘("?h?lgq& :%'r i

iy .E.télﬂ!. PayT! . 4

Sclllng gcncral and administrative

AR PO Al R AT i
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Total operating costs and expenses 81,898 44,829
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___Interest and ﬁnimcm% cxpense R s 060% e &682)\“ .
gt R : z&?ﬁg:gﬁﬁ gt *'af».;,fﬁ'?"?;,hh I E R R e

Other income cxpense ), net

e R R s e

Loss from contmumg opcratmns before i income taxes
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“?68 1
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_ 24,504 ézv 487) —
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op cmuons _

Net income g_oss

30,537
R ———— SRR

Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ 23,763 § (30,903) §

Basic

TR e

Earmn S loss)yp r common share frg»md

SRR

T
(0.80) $

5‘,‘

contmuc g atlons
ieEE Ay Eng

Diluted
Cr ST FETT
L A e A T B R iR

Basic

ey e
R q;‘ézﬁ._

Diluted 48,702,886 34,734,506 16,460,600

| . . . .
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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subsidiary, nct
e

GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIAR[ES
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA)

ACCUMULATED
QTHER TOTAL
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Commaon stock issued: Debt for equity
545,455
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Exrree—

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED VEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 39, SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 39,

2006 2005 2004
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS QF CASH FLOWS

{AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

Globix Cotporation and its subsidiaries (“Globix” or the “Company™), through its subsidiary NEON Communications, [nc. (*“NEON”), owns
and operates a high bandwidth fiber optic network that supplies transport services to carriers and enterprise customers in the twelve-state
Northeast and mid-Aflantic market. The Company currently offers services from facilities in New York City, New York and Westborough,
Massachusetts,

Approximately 31.4% of the Company’s revenue from continuing operations for the year ended September 30, 2006 comes from its two largest
customers, and approximately 54.9% of the Company’s revenue from continuing operations for the year comes {rom its five largest customers.
The Company's five largest customers are Cingular Wireless, Verizon Wireless, Verizon, T-Mobile, and Qwest. The Company expects to
continue to provide service to these customers. However, if one or more of these customers were to discontinue service it could have a material
effect on the Company's revenues and results of operations.

Approximately 31.3% of the Company’s cost of revenue from continuing operations for the year ended September 30, 2006 is derived from
services provided by 3 major telecommunication carriers. While the Company believes that most of these services can be obtained from other
alternative carriers, an interfuption in services from one of these carriers or other suppliers could iimit the Company’s ability to serve its
customers, which would adversely affect the Company's results of operations. ~

As a result of the decision to exit the hosting business, the results of the hosting operations have been reflected as discontinued operations for
all periods presented.

2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 6, 2006, the Company closed the sale of its UK hosting business. The total sales ptice was $62 million, subject to various
working capital adjustments. Of the total sales price, $3.1 million is being held in an escrow account until March 31, 2008 to cover
indemnification claims. The Company also entered into a transition services agreement with the purchaser of the UK hosting business to
provide certain services until mid-2007. Inciuded in the results from discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2006 is the pre-
tax gain on the disposition of the UK hosting business of approximately $46.2 million,

As of September 30, 2006, accounting criteria for the classification of the Company’s US hosting business had been met which resulted in the
results of operations of the US hosting business being reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented and the assets and liabilities
being reflected as held for sale at September 30, 2006. (see Note 24, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS for further description).

The UK and the US hosting businesses are both components of the discontinued operations.

The table below presents the significant components of operating results included in income from discontinued operations for the years ended
September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Years Ended

{in thousands) September 30, 1006 September 30, 2005 September 30, 2004

ain on dis
I;1§y lx-ﬁi.mi'k-':n «?E:‘uisfé )

osal 0

ghimestaxrexyense:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 5 48,937 % (3,050} $ (3,301)
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GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The assets and liabilities of the US Hosting business reflected as held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2006 are
shown below.

. September
{in thousands) 30, 2006

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Tolalicarentisse

Total long-tenm assets

T B S e R
Accounts payable 3

Current portion of deferred revenue

A T R R R R e g

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Such estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities.

Significant estimates include estimates of the collectibility of accounts receivable, the useful lives and ultimate réalizability of property,
squipment, intangibles and deferred tax assets. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of revisions are reflected in
he period that they are determined to be necessary. Actual resulls may vary from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Levenue in the Company’s NEON business consists primarily of lit fiber services, dark fiber services and co-location. Revenue from its
liscontinued hosting operations consisted primarily of Internet hosting, co-location, managed services, network services and Internef access.

“he Company recognizes revenue in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™), No. 104
Revenue Recognition”,

he NEON business segment offers leases of it fiber (fixed amounts of capacity on fiber optic transmission lines that use optronics equipment
1stalled by the Company) and longer term leases of dark fiber (fiber optic transmission lines leased without optronics equipment installed by
1e Company) at fixed cost pricing over multi year terms. Revenues from fiber optic network services are recognized ratably over the term of
1e applicable lease agreements with customers, which range from one to 20 years, provided

F-9







GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

there exists persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the fee is fixed or determinable and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assured. Amounts billed in advance of the service provided are recorded as deferred revenue. The Company alsa leases space to customers at
its co-location facilities, Revenues from nonrecurring installation charges and design, engineering and construction services are recognized
mtably over the muiti-year network services terms to which the nonrecurring charges relate provided there exists petsuasive evidence of an
arrangement, the fee is fixed or determinable and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

The hosting business segment recognizes revenue when delivery has occurred, persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, the fee is fixed or
determinable and collectability is probable. SAB No. 104 expresses the view of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s staff in applying
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to certain revenue recognition issues. Under the provisions of SAB
No. 104, set up and installation revenue are deferred and recognized over the estimated length of the customer relationship, which in the case of
our Globix segment is approximately 36 months. Monthly service revenue under recurring agreements related to Internet hesting, co-location,
network services, Intemnet access and managed services is recognized over the period that service is provided. Revenue derived from project or
event type managed service engagements is recognized over the life of the engagement. Payments received in advance of providing services are
deferred until the period that these services are provided.

COST OF REVENUE

Cost of revenuc for fiber services consists primarily of right of way fees, dark fiber leases, real estate and co-location leases, last mile circuit
leases and network operations and maintenance costs. Right of way fees are paid primarily to utilities and public and private entities for the
right to place fiber optic cable on their structures and property. Fiber leases are fees paid to other telecommunications providers for the use of
their dark fiber over which we provide transport services. We lease rea! estate and co-location space to allow placement of optronics equipment
to power our network. Last mile circuit leases consist of services from other carrders and local phone companies to extend transport services
beyond our network to a customer location. Network operations and maintenance consists primarily of labor, contractor services and utility
costs.

Within the Company’s discontinued hosting operations, cost of revenue for Internet services consists primarily of telecommunications costs for
Intemet access and managed hosting, payroll and occupancy which it incurs in support of its network operations, systems and customer
services and the cost of hardware and software purchased for resale to customers. Payroll costs allocated to cost of revenue are based on the
primary activity of the department such as maintaining the network, customer support and systems operations. Occupancy costs allocated to
cost of revenue are based primarily on the square footage of our various facilities. Cost of revenue excludes depreciation and amortization.
Telecommunications costs include the cost of providing local loop for connecting dedicated access customers to the Company's network,
feascd line and associated costs related to connecting with its peering partners and costs associated with leased lines connecting its facilities to
its backbone and aggregation points of presence. :

- CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, short-
lerm investments, restricted cash, marketable securities and accounts receivable. The Company maintains cash and cash cquivalents, short-term
investments and restricted cash with various major financial institutions, which invest primarily in U.S, Government instrutnents, high quality
' sorporate obligations, certificates of deposit and commercial paper. The Company’s cash and cash equivalent and investments in the U.S may
2 in excess of insured limits and are not insured in other jurisdictions. The Company believes that the financial institutions that hold the
Company’s investments are financially sound and, accordingly, minimal credit risk cxists with respect to these investments.

[he Company believes that concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable are limited due to the credit quality of the
~ompany’s largest customers. The Comipany performs ongoing credit evaluations of these and other custamers and maintains reserves for
wotential losses. Approximately 31.4% of the Company's revenue for the year ended September 30, 2006 comes from its two largest customers
nd approximately 54.9% of the Company’s revenue for the year comes from its five largest transport customers.

ihort-term investments and marketable securities are well diversified and, accordingly, minimal credit risk exists with respect to these
nvestments.
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GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES-
NOTES TQ CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASII AND INVESTMENTS
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

The classification is determined based on the expected term of the collateral requirement or the availability of the funds and not the maturity
date of the underlying securities. In addition, the Company has restricted cash in a money market and an escrow account primartly to sccure
certain NEON leases.

Included in long-term restricted cash as of September 30, 2006 are approximately $3,100,000 held in escrow related to the sale of the
Company’s UK hosting business and $7,090,000 related to the Company’s letters of credit.

Included in long-term restricted cash as of September 30, 2005 are amounts held in escrow related to the lease of the Company’s facility
located at Prospect House, 80 New Oxford Street, London, United Kingdom of approximately §2,000,000 and $7,090,000 related to the
Company’s letters of credit.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and are non-interest bearing. At each reporting period the Company cvaluates, on a
specific basis, the economic condition of its customers and their ability and intent to pay their debt. If such evaluation shows that it is probable
that a customer will not settle their full obligation, a reserve against accounts receivable in general and administrative expense is recorded for
the non-recoverable amount. The Company also maintains a gencral bad debt reserve based on the aging of its customer’s receivables and
historical trends. In addition, during each reporting period the Company must make estimates of potential future credits, which will be issued in
respect of curreat revenues. The Company analyzes historical credits and changes in customer demands regarding its current billings when
evaluating credit reserves. If such analysis shows that it is probable that a credit will be issued, the Company reserves the estimated credit
amount against revenues in the current period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at depreciated historical cost adjusted for impairment and include fresh start adjustments. All
identifiable assets recognized in accordance with fresh start accounting were recorded at the Effective Date of the Plan based upon an
independent appraisal. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes and accelerated methods for
income tax purposes. The estimated useful lives of property are as follows:

YEARS

B R S B S e M A b B
Cpmgutqr hardware and software and network eq
ST s AR e

Office fumiture and cquipincht

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease or life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Maintenance and repairs are charged
to expense as incurred. The cost of additions and betterments are capitalized: The cost and related accumulated depreciation of property retired
ot sold are removed from the applicable accounts and any gain or loss is taken into income.

Software obtained for intemal use is stated at depreciated historical cost adjusted for impairments and fresh start adjustments and is depreciated
using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life.

The Company’s long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset
to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.
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GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company’s intangible assets are as follows:

. trademarks and trade name:
. revenue backlog; and
. customer contracts and relationships.

The Company amortizes intangible assets by the straight line method over their estimated useful lives, Trademarks and trade name are
amortized over a period of § years, revenue backlog is being amortized over 10 years and the customer contracts and relationships are
amortized over 10 years.

Intangible asscts were reviewed for impairment as of September 30, 2006 and 2005. No impairment of intangible asscts was recognized during
the ycars ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.

INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are provided for differences between financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax
rates in effect in the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. The Company provides a valuation allowance on net deferred tax
assets when it is more likely than not that these assets will not be realized. Certain tax benefits existed as of the Effective Date of the Plan but
were offset by vatuation allowances. The utilization of these benefits to reduce income taxes paid to U.S. Federal and state and foreign
jurisdictions does not reduce the Company's income tax expense. Realization of net operating loss, tax credits and other deferred tax benefits
from pre-emergence attributes will first reduce intangible assets until exhausted, and thereafter will be credited to additional paid in capital.

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Comprehensive income is a more inclusive financial reporting method that includes amounts that historically have not been recognized in the
calculation of net income. Comprehensive Loss and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss includes net loss, foreign currency translation,
and unrealized gain (loss) on financial instruments and is included in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Bquity.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiarics have been translated as follows: assets and liabilities are transtated into u.s.
Dollars at the year-end rate of exchange. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate during the year. The resulting
foreign currency translation adjustment is included in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss.
Transaction gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective October 1, 2005, Globix adopted SFAS 123(R) “Share-based Payment”, which requires, among other things, that the estimated fair
value of stock options be charged to eamings. Significant management Jjudgment is required to determine the appropriate assumptions for
inputs such as volatility and expected term necessary to estimate the fair value of options at the date of grant. In addition, management
judgment is required to analyze the terms of the plans and awards granted thereunder to determine if awards will be treated as equity awards or
liability awards, as defined by SFAS 123(R). SFAS 123(R) requires that cost resulting from all share-based transactions be recognized in the
financial staterents. Globix adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective method of adoption, as permitted. Accordingly, prior period
mounts have not been restated. Under this method, Globix is required to record compensation expense for atl awards granted after the date of
adoption and for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption. The compensation cost
ecognized for awards granted prior to October 1, 2005 is based on the estimated grant date fair value and expense attribution methodology
riginally determined under SFAS 123, Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), Globix applied Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
*Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25"), to account for its stock-based awards. Under APB 25 compensation cost for stock
)ptions was generally not recognized as long as the stock options granted had an exercise price equal to or greater than the market price of
Flobix's common stock on the date of grant. With the adoption of SFAS 123(R), Globix recorded stock-based compensation expense for the
‘ost of stock options. In 2006 Globix incurred compensation costs of $2,551,000 related to stock options as a result of the adoption of SFAS
[23(R) effective October 1, 2005. As of September 30, 2006, there was $ 132,000 of
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unrecognized compensation cost related to Globix's option awards. The weighted-average periods over which the costs are expected to be
recognized are .27 years.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic camings or loss per share is compited on the basis of the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings or loss per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, adjusted for
potentially dilutive securities calculated using the treasury stock method. The following table summarizes the equivalent number of common
shares attributable to the related securitics that were outstanding for each of the periods presented:

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 3¢, SEPTEMBER 3,
006 1005 2004

T e e e A N A SR G L ) B et b
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

C \ onvertible I et e 2,971,753 . 2971,753 —
e e S o e G U e et R 0 A R

8,965,722 9,007,844 1,684,853

For the year ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 atl equivalent shares were not included in the calculation of difuted loss per share
because the Company had loss from continuing operations for all years presented and therefore egivalent shares are antidilutive.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the Sccurities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (Topic 1N). “Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” ("SAB No. 108). SAB No. 108 addresses how the effect of prior-year uncorrected
misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatcments in current-year financial statements. SAB No. 108 requires SEC
registrants (i) to quantify misstatements using a corabined approach which considers both the balance-sheet and income-statement approaches,
(ii) to evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying an error that is material in light of relevant quantitative and qualitative factors,
and (iii} to adjust their financial statements if the new combined approach results in a conclusion is that an error is material. SAB No. 108
addresses the mechanics of cotrecting misstatements that include effects from prior years. It indicates that the curreat-year correction of a
material error that includes prior-year effects may result in the need to correct prior-year financial statements even if the misstatement in the
prior year or years is considered immaterial. Any prior-year financial statements found to be materiatly misstated in years subsequent to the
issuance of SAB No. 108 would be restated in accordance with SFAS No. 154, “Adccounting Changes and Errar Corrections. ” Because the
combined approach represents a change in practice, the SEC staff will not require registrants that followed an acceptable approach in the past to
restate prior years® historical financials statements. Rather, these registrants can report the cumulative effect of adopting the new approach as an
adjustment to the current year's beginning balance of retained eamnings, If the new approach is adopted in a quarter other than the first quarter,
financial statements for prior interim periods within the year of adoption may need to be restated. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years
ending after November 15, 2006, which for the Company would be its fisca! year beginning October 1, 2007. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of SAB No. 108.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures" (*SFAS No. 157").
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes & framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP),
expands disclosures about fair value measurements, and applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, the FASH anticipates that for some entities, the
application of SFAS No. 157 will change current practice. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007, which for the Company would be its fiscal year beginning October 1, 2008.
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In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 prescribes detailed guidance for the financial statement recognition, measurement and disclosure of
uncertain tax positions recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SEAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”
Tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the effective date to be recognized upon the adoption of FIN 48 and in
subsequent periods. FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, which for us would be our fiscal year
beginaing October_1, 2007, and the provisions of FIN 48 will be applied to all tax positions upon initial adoption of the Interpretation. The
cumulative effect of applying the provisions of this Interpretation will be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained camnings
for that fiscal year. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of its adoption.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments — an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 133 and 140.” SFAS No. 155 allows companics to elect to measure at fair value entire financial instruments containing
embedded derivatives that would otherwise have to be accounted for separately. It also requires companics to identify interests in securitized
financial assets that are freestanding derivatives or contain embedded derivatives that would have to be accounted for separately, clarifies
which interest- and principal-only strips are subjcct to SFAS No. 133, and amends SFAS No. 140 to revise the conditions of a qualifying
special purpose entity duc to the new requirement to identify whethér interests in securitized financial assets are freestanding derivatives or
contain embedded derivatives. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired, issued or subject to a remeasurement event
after the beginning of a company's first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The Company does not expect adoption of SFAS No.
[55 to have a material effect on its results of operations or financial position.

RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentations.
4. MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS

On March 7, 2005, Globix completed its acquisition of NEON purchasing all of the capital stock of NEON. The purchase price of
$112,862,000 consisted of $5,349,000 in cash, the issuance of 27,573,000 shares of common stock with a fair value of $83,507,000 (based on
the average share price during the three day period before and after the announcement of the merger), the issuance of 2,972,000 shares of
cumulative convertible preferred stock with a fair market value of $12,639,000, the issuance of 3,381,000 shares of stock options and warrants
with a fair value of $7,928,000 and approximately $3,439,000 of other direct acquisition costs. NEON awns and operates a high bandwidth
fiber optic network, extending from Portland, ME to Washington, DC. Through this network NEON provides metro and intercity
communications coverage, as well as co-location space, to local and long distance telecommunications carriers and a small number of non-
carrier customers, including universities, colleges and financial institutions, in various markets in the Northeast and mid-Atlantic regions,
including Boston, New York, Philadelphia, Newark, Baltimore, Washington, DC, Pertland, Portsmouth, Springficld, Worcester, Albany, White
Plains, Providence, Hartford, Hackensack, Vienns, Virginia and smaller communities along our network routes, The final allocation of the
purchase price is summarized below: ' '

smounts In thaussnds) . ’

e T T :
Accounts receivable acquired ' . ] 1,976
R e A P R e O T S R T,
Restricted cash and investments acquired 7,501

b By A L R e L L S RS R G e e i

Identifiable intangible assets acquired . ) 4,500
e E G s I R R TSy
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities assumed . o L (11,949)
i e e Rt
Other liabilities assumed (2,064)
R FUBRERR S R
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The following table shows the details of the intangibie asscts acquired in the NEON purchase:

{amounts fn thousands) Asset Value Amortizable Life

$ 4,500

The following pro forma combined results of operations assume that the acquisition occurred on October 1, 2003.

Unaudited
September 30, September 30,
(amounts in thousznds, except share and per share amounts} 2005 2004
g e R I T ; R I A R DA G TR, T
R P A R s e e A I e i AT e AR ERAI R e R it e e
Lass from continuing operations (27,179 (41,743)

ki G A S e P R s T T s o Rl S e e B L
Pro-forma s ©56) $ (0.86)

e e S R e R IR R S R

On October 31, 2003, Globix acquired for cash the business, substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Aptegrity, Inc.
(“Aptegrity”), a provider of web application and operations managetnent services for a total net cash consideration of approximately
$2,300,000. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase; accordingly, the purchase price has been altocated to the assets acquired. The
allocation of the purchase price among the identifiable intangible assets was based upon the Company’'s estimates of fair value of those assets.
The Company has recorded $800,000 in respect of acquired trademarks and trade names which are being amortized on a straight-line basis over
77 years and $400,000 was recorded in respect of customer contracts which are being amortized on a straight-line basis over 2 years. The
operations of Aptegrity ate included in discontinued operations in the consolidated statements from November 1, 2003.

5. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

SEPTEMEER 30,

(amounts in thousands)

iA.E ﬁp&fl@%ﬁ@_. 2

Prepaid insurance

F T T e A R T PR R S T
937

Prepaid fiber leascs e TG
mﬁmﬁwiﬁﬁf O S T e SR e T R IR
Other 187 963

RS S SR i
—— P———

paiber o P
BRE LN e e

L)
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Froperty, plant and equipment consist of the following:

SEPTEMBER 30,

(amounts in thousands) 06 2005

Building and buil
Computer hardware and softw
HipgrmrAT i

b ARG AT s e YT PPN ST s S S
S e R R

Ty e L A P 2o L P Sl it LA
o R R R

L;g_s_t_ Accur_np_'ltatcdté:_:p{g&i&_liq‘q gﬁﬂkgmon_i_za!ion
PR NG R e T R

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 125455 § 206,230

In September 2006, the Company completed the sale of its building located at 139 Centre Street, New York, New York which resulted in the
reduction of the value of the land, building and building improvements, and leasehold improvements, net of accumulated depreciation of
$45,306,000. The Company received approximately $51.8 million in cash, after reducing the agreed $55 million fair market value of the
property by $3.2 million in partial satisfaction of amounts owed to the former owner of the property on account of the sale. From this cash
amount, the Company paid in full an existing mortgage, a remaining payment owed to the former owner of the property and other fees and
expenses. The Company realized a loss on this transaction of $3,803,000.

As a result of the sale of the Company's UK hosting business in September 2006, property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation decreased by $24,580,000.

During October 2003 the Company reached an agreement, which was subject to various closing conditions, to sell the property located at 415
Greenwich Street, New York, NY (“the Property™) for total cash consideration of approximately $60,000,000. The sale of the Property was
completed on January 22, 2004. In connection with the sale the Company recorded during the year ended September 30, 2004, an impairment
charge of $17,972,000 to write-down the Property to its market value, ‘

Depreciéﬁdn and amortization expense from continuing operations was $14,822,000, $8,471,000, and $2,786,000 for the years ended
September 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 ) SEPTEMBER 10, 2005
GROSS GROSS
CARRYING ACCUMULATED CARRYING ACCUMULATED
(amounts in thousands) AMOUNT AMORTIZATION AMOUNT AMORTIZATION

SRR
7,453
LT TSRS

TR AR AT R
Network build-out know-how _
G eshtCI R velatiS i L R I IR e S :

Backlog 1,174 186 1,174

a8 84
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Identifiable intangible assets amortization expense from continuing operations was $558,000 and $325,000 for the years ended September 30,
2006 and September 30, 2005, respectively. There was no amortization expense from continuing operations for the year ended September 30,
2004.

Estimated future annual amortization expense as of September 30, 2006 is as follows:

YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,

(amounts in thousands)

R R

W R

Thereafler

il e At s U

8. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

SEPTEMBER 30,

(amounts (n thousands)

POt M e S

$ 12,525 3 17,418

9. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Other long-term liabilities consist of the following:

SEFTEMBER 30

(amounts in thousands) 1006 2005

figiRative. (SSchbTioBIRATHH Y
Asset retirement obligation
Db
Other
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In connection with fresh start accounting at the April 2002 effective date, the Company recorded a Negative Leasehold Liability associated
with three of its Internet data centers. The Negative Leasehold Liability amount was determined by independent appraisal and based upon
research of the local market condition in each market and estimation of the net effective market rental rates in comparison to the Company's
contractual lease rates through expiration of the lease. Such liability was to be amortized to reduce lease expense through 2013. At September
30, 2006 the remaining obligation has been reclassified to liabilities held for sale.

Upon acquiring NEON, the Company assumed an asset retirement obligation (*“ARO”). This ARO relates to underground fiber network assets
and the associated obligation to return the areas where the fiber lays to its natural state upon retiring the assets. In accordance with FASB

issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations™, the Company will accrete the asset retirement obligation over the useful
- life of the related asset.

10. 11% SENIOR NOTES

The Company is deemed to have issued the 1% Senior Notes on April 25, 2002, the date the Company’s plan of reorganization became
effective (“Effective Date”), in onc series that is initially limited to $120,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 11% Senior Nates. However,
none of the 11% Senior Notes had been distributed as of September 30, 2002. In October 2002, the Company distributed $ 120,000,000 in
aggregate principal amount of the [1% Senior Notes, which included $1,968,000 in aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes placed in
reserve in escrow pursuant to a Stipulation and Order entered into with the lead plaintiffs in the class action lawsuit,

The 11% Senior Notes were expected to mature on May 1, 2008. The 11% Senior Notes bear interest at 11% per annum, payable annually in
May of each year, commencing on May 1, 2003. Interest on the 11% Senior Notes for the first two year period following the initial date of
issuance is payable in kind by the issuance of additional notes with terms identical to the 11% Senior Notes (other than the date of issuance) in
a principal amount equal to the interest payment then due. For the two year period thereafiet, interest is payable in cash or, at the Company's
option when authorized by its board of directors, in additional notes with terms identical to the 11% Senior Notes (other than the date of
issuance), or in any combination of cash and additional notes. For the remaining two years until maturity, interest is payable in cash,

During the year ended September 30, 2006, the Company issued approximately an additional $7,420,000 in 11% senior notes in payment of
iccrued interest on the 11% senior notes. During the year ended September 30, 2005, the Company had issued approximately an additional
$6,685,000 in 11% seniof notes in payment of accrued interest on the 11% senior notes. Also, in connection with the NEON merger, the

Zompany exchanged 4,545,455 shares of its common stock for §1 1,432,000 in principal and $1,068,000 in accrued interest on the 11% senior
10tes.

In October 3, 2003, the Company repurchased in the open market for $5,583,000 a portion of its outstanding 11% Senior Notes, which had a
rincipal value of $7,000,000 and associated accrued interest of $330,000. As a result of the repurchase, the Company recorded a gain on
lischarge of debt in the amount of $1,747,000.

iee Note 24. “SUBSEQUENT EVENTS” for information pertaining to the Company’s settlement of its 11% senior notes.

1. 9% SENIOR NOTES

0 order to obtain additional financing to meet the Company's needs for working capital, on December 13, 2005, the Company issued and sold

-3 million in principal amount of its 9% senior notes to a group of investors. The notes were cxpected to mature on May 1, 2008. Interest on
be notes is payable quarterly in arrears, beginning January [, 2006. One percent of the proceeds of the notes was used to pay a one time
 rigination fee to the note purchasers at closing. The notes are secured by a first priority security interest in domestic accounts receivable in the

mount of 150% of the principal amount of the notes. Covenants and events of default under the notes are generally no more onetous than
wse contained in the indenture relating to the Company’s outstanding
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11% senior notes, except that the new notes limit the incurrence of additional senior debt that otherwise might be permitted under the 1%
senior notes, The new notes can be prepaid without penalty or premium at any time following 30 days notice.

Purchasers of the notes include: LC Capital Master Fund Ltd., an investment fund managed by an investment adviser with which one member
of the Company’s Board of Directors, Steven Lampe, is affiliated; Karen Singer, the sister-in-law of another Board member, Steven Singer;
and Metronome LPC 1, Inc., an affiliate of Locb Partners Corp., which {together with its affiliates) was then the beneficial owner of
approximately 7.9% of our common stock. LC Capital Corp. Ltd. was then the beneficial owner of approximately 10.9% of the Company's
common stock (including 462,462 shares that may be acquired upon conversion of our convertible preferred stock). Karen Singer is the sole
trustee of the Singer Children's Management Trust, which was then the beneficial owner of approximately 8.8% of the Cempany's common
stock (including 699,099 shares that may be acquired on conversion of the preferred stock). The principal amounts purchased by these holders
are $1 million for .C Capital Master Fund Ltd., $1 million for Karen Singer and $1 million for Metronome. Steven Singer disclaims any
beneficial ownership interest in the 9% notes. The transaction was approved by ali of the disinterested members of the board of directors.

Prior to commencing discussions with the purchasers of the notes, the Company approachcd and made presentations to a number of unaffiliated
financial institutions in its efforts to locate working capital financing. The Company believes that the terms of the 9% notes are significantly
better than the terms of any written proposal received by it, based on the financial terms of the loan and associated transactional costs, as well
as better prepayment and other operational terms.

See Note 24. “SUBSEQUENT EVENTS” for information pertaining to the Company’s settlement of its 9% senior notes.

12, MORTGAGE PAYABLE

On January 25, 2000, the Company borrowed $21,000,000 from a financial institution pursuant to a mortgage note secured by the Company’s
property at 139 Centre Strect, New York. Interest was payable at 9.16% (subject to adjustment on February 11, 2010) based on a 25 year
amortization schedule. Principal and interest payments of $178,500 were payable monthly and any balance of the principal and all accrued and
unpaid interest was due and paysble in February 2025,

On September 29, 2006, the Company completed the sale of its 139 Centre Street, New York, New York headquarters building. As part of this
transaction, the Company defeased its mortgage for a payment of approximately $22,278,000.

13. CUMULATIVE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

Globix has designated 4,500,000 shares of 6% Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“preferred stock™), of which 2,971,753 shares
were issued in the acquisition of NEON, Each share of preferred stock is convertible into one share of common stock at the option of the
holder, is entitled to one vote, has a liquidation preference of $3.60 per shate plus accrued dividends, and is senior to the common stock of
Globix. Dividends are payable semi-annually at a rate of $0.11 per share when and if declared by the Board of Diirectors. At the option of
Globix, dividends are payable in cash or additional shares of preferred stock. At the option of Globix, shates of preferred stock can be
redeemed in whole or in part at $3.82 per share, plus accrued dividends, in 2006, $3.71 per share, plus accrued dividends, in 2007 and $3.60
per share, plus accrued dividends, thereafier. In the event of a change of control, as defined, each holder of preferred stock can require Globix
to purchase such holder’s shares of preferred stock for a price equal to $3.64 plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the purchase date. As of
September 30, 2006, a dividend of $1,036,000 in the aggregate, payable in either cash or additional shares of preferred stock at $3.60 per share,
had sccrued on the outstanding shares of preferred stock.

14, STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Stock Options

Globix maintains multiple share-based payment arrangements under which employees and Directors are awarded grants of stock options. Pror
to October 1, 2005, Globix accounted for these awards under the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board
Qpinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) as permitted under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (“SFAS 123"), and in accordance with FIN 28, “Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or
Award Plans an interpretation of APB Opinions No. 15 and 25” for options which are subject to meeting certain financial conditions.
Compensation cost for stock options was generally not recognized as long as the stock options granted had an exercise price equal fo or greater
than the market price of Globix's common stock on the date of grant. Effective October 1, 2005, Globix adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-
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Based Payment,” (“SFAS 123 (R)”) using the modified-prospective transition method. Under this transition method, compensation cost
recognized beginning October 1, 2005 includes compensation cost for all share-based payment amangements granted prior to, but not yet
vested as of Octaber 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value and expense attribution methodelogy determined in accordance with the
original provisions of SFAS 123, and compensation cost for all share-based payment arrangements granted subsequent to September 30, 2005,
based on the grant-date fair value and expense attribution methodology determined in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123 (R).

As a result of adopting SFAS 123 (R) on October 1, 2005, income before income taxes is $2.6 million lower than if it had continued to account
for share-based payment arrangements under APB 25. Basic and diluted eamings per share in 2006 would have been $0.54 if Globix had not
adopted SFAS 123 (R), compared to reported basic and diluted earnings per share of $0.49.

If compensation cost for all share-based payment arrangements had been recognized based on the fair value method prescribed by SFAS 123
for the periods prior to the adoption of SFAS 123 (R), Globix’s net loss and net loss per share in 2005 and 2004 would have been reduced to
the pro forma amounts indicated in the table below.

YEAR ENDED : YEAR ENDED
ggou:‘x_!sutg‘shnuunds °'£%{1‘-P°L§£}$3"-L‘,?",‘!E§ R O s EEMBER 30 203_5'0 SEPTEMBER 30, 1004
i P S S e T e e s
Deduct:
SRR s S
placli s IR SR 4

Pro-forma net loss altributable to common stockholders 3 (3l1,424) % (41,901}

A T R R e

Basic - as reported

R g T TEIS
e R

R e e
Diluted - as reported

R S R R T

L T e TS RS R

L]

—— .
SRS

Stock Option Plans

On March 14, 2003, the Company’s board of directors approved the 2003 Stock Option Plan (the *2003 Plan™). The 2003 Plan provides for the
grant of stock options to purchase up to 1,828,889 shares of the Company’s common stock to any employee, officer, director, or consultant of
the Company at an exercise price equal to at least the fair market value at the date of grant. All aptions granted under the 2003 Plan will
terminate no later than ten years from the date of grant. Generally 50% of options granted under the 2003 Plan vest ratably over a period of up
to 3 years with certain acceleration clauses while the remainder of the 50% vest upon meeting certain financial conditions. The 2003 Stock
Incentive Plan was amended at the annual meeting of the Company’s shareholdets on February 28, 2006 to increase the total number of aptions
available for issuance to 3,500,000 and to allow for up to 1,000,000 options to be granted to a single individual per year effective for grants
made in September 2005 and thereafter. .
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In 2003 and 2004, NEON granted options to purchase an aggregate of 43,658 shares of NEON common stock at exercise prices of $0.27 and
$0.30 per share to members of its board of directors, pursuant to a Directors Stock Option Plan, and options to purchase an agpregate of
2,193,000 shiares of NEON commion stack at exercise prices between $5.30 and $6.06 per share to certain of its employees, pursuant to a 2003
Stock Incentive Plan. Immediately prior to the merger with a subsidiary of Globix, in March 2005, NEON amended the Directors Stock Option
Plan and the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan to modify the options to provide for the issuance of shares of Globix common stock in lieu of NEON
common stock in accordance with the merger agreement, and to eliminate the ability to grant further options under these plans. In the merger,
the options were converted into options to purchase an aggregate of 50,578 shares of Globix common stock at $0.21 and $0.24 per share under
the Directors Stock Option Plan and 2,552,319 shares of Globix comumon stock at prices ranging from $4.16 to $4.75 per share under the 2003
Stock Incentive Plan. All of the options under the Directors Stock Option Plan were vested prior to or upen occurrence of the merger. Options
to purchase an aggregate of 2,374,337 shares of commeon stock under the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan were vested prior to or upon eccurrence of
the merger, and the remainder vest over a remaining period of 2 years. The 2003 Stock Option Plan is now the exclusive plan used to grant
stock options.

Options granted under the 2003 Plans may be designated as either incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options. The Compensation
Committee determines the terms and conditions of the option, including the time or times at which an option may be exercised, the methods by
which such exercise price may be paid, and the form of such payment, Options are generally granted with an exercise price equal to or greater
than the market value of Globix’s stock at the date of grant. On September 13, 2005, Globix began granting stock option awards that provide
for performance-based triggering events before a vested option can be exercised. For awards with performance triggering events each vesting
tranche is accounted for as a separate award with its own grant date fair value and requisite service period.

The estimated fair value of options granted was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing valuation model. This model takes into
account several factors and assumptions. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining
term equal to the expected life assumption at the time of prant. The expected life (estimated period of time outstanding) is estimated using the
contractual term of the option and the effects of employees’ expécted éxercise and post-vesting employment termination behavior. Expected
volatility was calculated based on the historical daily market price of the Company's stock since emerging from bankruptcy to the date of grant.
The expected dividend yield is based on expected dividends for the expected term of the stock options,

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing valuation model for options granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:
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A summary of the status of stock option awards as of September 30, 2006 and changes during the year then ended is presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggrepate
Average Remalaing Iatriasic
Exercise Contractual Value
Qptions Shares Price Term (3000)

S 236i ST

Granted 1,040,000 AT S A S
P T R A
AL N g g e 301,040) 275 T
Foreitedsonexpiret R A A P A C O LT 9 LAt e ]
4,415,349 31.55 8.3years 4,907,583

N

TISIV.EST
IR

Options excrcisable at September 30, 2006 3,988,304 3.63 7.4years 4,096,197

The weighted-average grﬂnt—datc fair value of option awards granted during the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1.59,
$2.71 and $3.41, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the same periods was $36,000 and $43,000 for 2006 and
2005. There were no options exercised in 2004,

As of September 30, 2006, there was § 132,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to Globix's option awards. The weighted-average
period over which that cost is expected to be recognized is .27 years. Cash received from the exercise of stock options for the years ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005 was $72,039 and $4,256, respectively. Glabix's policy is to issue new shares upon the exercise of options.

On March 14, 2003, the Company's board of directors approved the sale to Communication Technology Advisors, LLC (“CTA") of a fully
vested warrant exercisable for 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $3.00 per share, CTA provided
consulting services to the Company and was a related party until June 24, 2003. During January 2004, CTA purchased the warrants for
$25,000. The warrant is immediately exercisable for a period of 10 years from the date of issuance. Since CTA is a provider of services to the
Company the value of the warrant is expensed as determined by using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The assumptions used in the Black-
Scholes model include the risk free rate of 2.92%, volatility of 133%, no dividend yield, a contractual life of 10 years and an expected life of
five years with & fair market value of $2.50. The fair value of the warrant of § 1,050,000 was expensed as part of SG&A during the year ended
September 30, 2003. The CTA warrant is not included in the aforementioned table.

During 2003, NEON issued two warrants to CTA in exchange for services to purchase a total of 650,000 shares of the Company's common
stock at exercise prices ranging from $5.30 to $6.06. The fair value of these warrants was approximately $712,000. Approximately $360,000 of
this value related to amounts owed at December 31, 2002, that were included in reorganization items in the 2002 consolidated statement of
operations. The remaining $352,000 was included as a direct acquisition cost in the purchase price for Transcom. Upon acquisition of NEON,
the warrants granted to CTA were exchanged for warrants to purchase 828,620 shares of Globix common stock at exercise prices ranging from
$4.16 to $4.75.

In May 2005, the Company issued a warrant to Further Lane Asset Management, LLC to purchase 250,000 shares at a purchase price of $4.00
per share in a private transaction exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, in exchange for financial advisory
services to be provided to Globix by Further Lane. One twelfth of the warrants become exercisable in each month so that all warrants were
vested on May 1, 2006. The warrants expire on May 1, 2008. The Further Lane warrant is not included in the preceding table.

15. 401(K) PLAN

The Company offers its eligible U.S. employees the opportunity to participate in a defined contribution retirement plan qualifying under the
srovisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (“the 401(k} Plan"). Each employee is eligible to contribute, on a tax-deferred basis,
1 portion of annual eamnings not to exceed certain federal income tax limitations. The Company did not make any discretionary matching
:oniributions to the 401(k} Plan in the years ended Scptember 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

{6, INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the periods below differs from the amount computed by applying the federal statutory rate due to the
ollowing:
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YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBEER 10, SEPTEMBER 30,
1006 2005 2004
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State and local taxes, net of Federal bencfit
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Significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
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The Company is in an accumulated loss position for both financial and income tax reporting purposes. Globix has U.S. Federal income tax loss
carryforwards of approximately $192,615,000 and state income tax loss camyforwards of approximately $244,054,000 at September 30, 2006.
NEON has U.S. Federal income tax loss carryforwards of approximately $136,713,000 and state income tax loss carryforwards of
approximately $82,238,000 at September 30, 2006. These Federal net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards expire beginning in 2020 and will
be fully expired after 2025. The U.S. Federal income tax loss catryforwards were reduced upon emergence from bankruptcy due to the Internal
Revenue Code’s rules and regulations related to the cancellation of indebtedness income that is excluded from taxable income. Changes in the
ownership of NEON securities as a result of NEON’s plan of reorganization have caused there to be an annual limitation on the use of net
operating loss camryforwards that arose prior to the effective date of NEON's plan of reorganization. Changes in the ownership of the
Company’s securities as a result of its plan of reorganization have caused there to be an annual limitation on the use of NOL carryforwards that
erose prior to the effective date of its plan of reorganization, As a result of the merger with NEON and the open market divestiture of
significant amounts of shares of Globix stock by former NEON shareholders, both Globix and NEON experienced ownership changes in
March 2005 and April 2006, respectively. The availability of NOL camryforwards to reduce the Company’s future Federal income tax liability
is subject to
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limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Due to these limitations, $139.2 million of the $329.3 million in Federal NOL
carryforwards will be available for possible utilization for Federal income tax purposes. This amount is computed based upon the estimated
NOL generated after the April 2006 ownership change of NEON plus the $6.5 million annual limitation resulting from that change of
ownership. Subsequent ownership changes, if any, could impose additional limitations on the Company's NOL carryforwards. The application
of the Code in this area is subject to interpretation by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”). The NOL carryforwards are subject to examination
by the IRS and are thus subject to adjustment of disallowance resulting from any such IRS examination Additional limitations would be
imposed as a result of any such ownership change which may increase the Company’s U.S. federal income tax liability.

For financial reporting purposes, deferred tax assets at September 30, 2006 and 2005 are fully offset by a valuation allowance due to the
uncertainty of the Company’s ability to realize income tax bencefits by generating taxable income in the future. Manapement also estimates that
the no taxes will be due related to the gains recorded on the sale of the UK hosting business and the sale of the building at 139 Centre Street
New York, New York. As such no tax expensc has been recorded on these transactions.

The Company’s emergence from bankruptey in fiscal 2002 did not create a new tax reporting entity. Accordingly, the adjustments required to
adopt fresh start accounting are not applicable for the Company’s tax reporting and therefore, deferred tax items were recognized concwrently
with the recognition of the respective fresh start accounting adjustments. In addition pursuant to SOP No. 90-7, reversals of the valuation
allowance recorded against deferred tax assets that existed as of the emergence date will first reduce intangibles until exhausted and thereafter
are reported as additional paid in capital as opposed to income tax expense. The balance of the valuation allowance for which this treatment is
required was approximately $80,400,000 at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

[7. DEFERRED REVENUES

Deferred revenue represents leases of lit fiber (fixed amounts of capacity on fiber optic transmission lines that use cptronics equipment
installed by NEON) and longer term leases of dark fiber (fiber optic transmission lines leased without optronics equipntent installed by NEON)
at fixed cost pricing over multi year terms, Revenues from fiber optic network services are recognized ratably over the terim of the applicable
lease agreemenis with customers, which range from one to 20 years. Amounts billed in advance of the service provided are recorded as
deferred revenue and recognized over the life of the contract. The Company also leases space to customers at its co-location facilities.
Revenues from nonrecurring installation charges and design, engineering and construction services are recognized ratably over the multi-year
network services terms to which the nonrecurring charges relate. As part of the purchase price allocation associated with the NEON acquisition,
the Company assessed the fair market value of NEON’s deferred revenue and determined that historical costs were the best estimate for the fair
value based on current prices for services and the risk profile of the associated customers.

The components of deferred revenue are as follows:

SEPTEMBER 39,
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18, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

The Company has minimum monthly usage/maintenance levels with certain of its telecommunications carriers expiring in various years
through 2009. The Company also leases certain of its facilities and various equipment under non-cancelable operating leases expiring in
various years through 2017, Total leage expense under operating leases for continuing operations for the year ended September 30, 2006 and
the year ended September 30, 2005 was $7,733,000 and $4,538,000, respectively. There was no lease expense for continuing operations for the
year ended September 30, 2004.

Future minimum payments due under these operating leases and telecommunications carrier usage commitments as of September 30, 2006 are
as follows:

{amounts in thousands)
YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 340, TELECOM LEASES TOTAL
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The Company leases fibers for various segments of its network under operating leases that expire at various dates through December 2034,
Future minimum lease payments required under these fiber optic leases at Septembet 30, 2006 were approximately as follows:
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Fiber lease expensc charged to operations under the above agreements was approximately $9,322,000 and $4,625,000 in the years ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Rentals Due From Third Parties

As of September 30, 2006, we subleased to third parties office space in our New York building for periods of less than one yeat. Lease income
for the year ended September 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was approximately $2,047,000, $2,010,000, and $1,640,000, respectively.

As of September 30, 2006, future minimum sublease income is $402,000.
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Letters of Credit

In addition, the Company has commitments under standby letters of credit, issued primarily to secure certain leases, which totaled
approximately $7,090,000 at September 30, 2006.

Contingencies Related to Strategic Transactions

The Company has contractual contingencies in connection with the strategic transactions that resulted in the sale of its US and UK hosting
businesses and New York City headquarters building. The contracts for the sale of the US and UK hosting businesses provided for escrows of
$2.0 million and $3.1 million, respectively, which may be used to offset certain claims by the purchasers; although the contracts for the sales of
these businesses provide that the escrows are the sole source of funds for these claims, there is no assurance that the purchasers might not seek
additional compensation. In addition, in connection with the sales of these businesses, the Company agreed to provide transition services and
could face liability if these transition services are not properly provided. The contract for the sale of the Campany’'s headquarters building
requires the Company to deliver a vacated building on May 31, 2007 and if the Company fails to do so, the sales contract provides penaltics
that can be assessed apainst the Company.

Employment and Other Contractual Agreements

Peter K. Stevenson

Effective April 15, 2002, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Peter K. Stevenson for his scrvices as the Company's
President and Chief Exccutive Officer. Mr. Stevenson's employment agreement expired in July 2003, and was extended until July 31, 2004
subject to extension for successive six month periods with the mutual consent of Globix and Mr. Stevenson. Mr. Stevenson’s base salary was
$308,000 per year. Mr. Stevenson was also eligible for an annual bonus equal to up to 50% of his base salary, contingent upon the Company
mecting certain performance targets and a bonus contingent on the success the Company may have in the purchase or sale of certain assets or
disposition or acquisition of certain business in sums to be determined by the Company’s compensation committee. [n addition, under the terms
of Mr. Stevenson’s employment agreement, Mr. Stevenson was granted options to acquire 548,700 shares of the Company’s cominon stock. As
of September 30, 2005, all of Mr. Stevenson’s options were fully vested.

On September 15, 2005, the Company approved a new employment agreement with Mr. Stevenson providing for a base salary of $350,000 per

" annum end an employment term extending through December 31, 2006. Mr. Stevenson is also eligible to receive an annual bonus up to 50% of

his base salary, contingent upon the Company meeting certain performance targets. In addition, Mr. Stevenson received options to purchase
320,888 shares of the Company’s common stock at an excrcise price of $2.75 per share, which will vest in December 2005 and 2006, subject to
the achievement by the Company of certain performance targets. In December 2005, 49,096 of the 2005 options vested based on the Company
meeting certain of the performance targets. The agreement provides for the continuation of salary payments through the end of his employment
term in the event that he is terminated from his employment with the company without cause or resigas from the company for good reason
before the end of his employment term. In addition, if Mr. Stevenson’s employment is terminated without cause or he resigns for good reason,
all theretofore unvested stock options held by Mr. Stevenson will immediately vest.

Ted S. Lodge

In connection with the election of Ted. S. Lodge as Chairman of the Company’s Board of Dircctors and Executive Chairman of the Company,
the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Lodge. Pursuant to the provisions of this employment agreement, the term of his
employment will be one year from the date of the execution of the agreement on October 31, 2005, during which he will be required to devote
at least two days per work week to the business and affairs of the company. Mr. Lodge will receive a base salary of $275,000 per annum,
subject to increases at the discretion of the board of directors and will be eligible to receive bonuses at the discretion of the board of directors.
In addition, Mr. Lodge will receive fully vested options to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of
$2.75 per share. The company will reimburse Mr. Lodge for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with his employment
including lodging within the New York metropolitan area during the work week, expenses incurred in maintaining an office in Pennsylvania
and roundtrip transportation between New York and Pennsylvania. In the event that Mr. Lodge is required to relocate his primary place of
business to a location farther than 60 miles from its current location in Pennsylvania or if he is actually or constructively terminated without
cause following a change in control (as defined in the indenture goveming the company’s 11% senior secured notes), he will receive severance
in the amount equal to his base salary due through the end of the period ending October 31, 2006 plus one year of his base salary. In addition,
for a period of 360 days after such termination, Mr. Lodge will be able to exercise any stock options previously granted to him by the company,
which will all be considered fully vested upon such termination of employment with the company.

On October 18, 2006, Mr. Lodge's employment was extended for one year, until October 31, 2007, on the same terms as described above.

Gene M. Bauer

On September 16, 2005, the Company's Compensation Committee unanimously approved the hiring of Gene M. Bauer to serve as the



Company’s Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Mr. Bauer will receive a base salary of $200,000 per annum, subject to increases at
the discretion of the Compensation Committee and will be eligible to receive a cash boaus of up to 30% of his znnual base salary pursuant to
the company’s annual incentive compensation plan. The eligibility for and payout of Mr. Bauer’s bonus will be subject to the policies for cash
incentive compensation for the performance period extending from July 1, 2005 through
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December 31, 2006 adopted by the Compensation Committee on September 13, 2005. Mr. Bauer will receive $200 per month in lieu of
medical coverage, subject to compliance with any legal restrictions of the company’s benefit plans, will have access to use the company's
apartment free of charge and will be entitled to four weeks’ vacation per year. In the event that Mr. Bauer is required to relocate his primary
place of business to a location farther than 60 miles outside of New York City (other than the greater Boston arez) or if he is actually or
constructively temminated without cause within one year following a change in control (as defined by the company’s 2003 Stock Option Plan),
he will receive severance in the amount equal to one year of his base salary.

Legal Procecdings

On January 28, 2002, a derivative suit was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against the Company,
as nominal defendant, and certain of its current and former directors and officers. The action is entitled Susan Boney, Individually and
Derivatively on behalf of Nominal Defendant Globix Corp, Plaintiff v. the named former Board of Directors (pre-Bankruptcy), Defendants and
Globix Corp, a Delaware Corporation, Nominal Defendant. Plaintiffs brought the action against the former board and certain exccutives
seeking damages and expenses for breach of fiduciary duty for violations of federal and state securities laws alleging misrepresentations of
Globix's financial petformance from 2000 through 2001. The Company behieves that the allegations in this lawsuit are without merit and it
intends to vigorously defend against them. In addition, the plaintiff has not pursued her claims since the filing of the lawsuit. There have been
1o actions related to this litigation since September 2002. Although there can be no assurance as to the outcome or effect of this lawsuit, the
Company docs not believe, based on currently available information, that the ultimate liabilities, if any, resulting from this lawsuit will have a
material adverse impact on its business, financial condition, results of operations ot cash flows.

On June 25, 2002, Globix entered into a Stipulation and Order with the lead plaintiffs in a class action lawsuit that had been brought against the
Company and certain of its directors and officers. The Stipulation and Order provides that 229,452 shares of the Company’s common stock and
$1,968,000 in aggregate principal amount of the 11% senior notes will be held in escrow pending the outcome of the class action lawsuit. Ifa
judgment or settlement in the class action lawsuit had required the Company to pay an amount in excess of its liability insurance, the Company
would have been required to issue to the class action litigants and their atterneys all {in the event that this excess is $10 million or greater) ora
portion of (in the event that this excess is less than $10 million) the shares of its common stock and the 11% senior notes being held in escrow.
This lawsuit was settled in 2005 for less than the Company’s liability insurance. Accordingly, Globix expects to distribute the shares of
common stock and 11% senior notes held in escrow to Globix security holders under the plan of reorganization,

In May 2006, the Company was served with a summons and complaint in an action entitled Media Express USA, Ltd. V5. Globix Corporation
which is pending in the New York County Supreme Court. The complaint seeks $250,000 on each of two causes of action based on a claim that
the Company failed to provide plaintiff with certain contracted-for services. The Company has filed an answer denying the material allcgations
of the complaint and asserting numerous defenses. The Company has significant strong legal defenscs to the claims and no longer has direct
liability since the claim was assigned as part of the sale of the Company’s US hosting business. The plaintiff has failed to appear for a properly
noticed deposition.

From time to time Globix is involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of our business operations. Although there can be no
assurance as to the outcome or effect of any legal proceedings to which the Company is a party, the Company does not believe, based on
currently available information, that the ultimate liabilities, if any, arising from any such legal proceedings would have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. ' :

19. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, the Company evaluated its results of operations based on one reportable segment. Previously the
Company reported under two reportable segments.

Although the Company operates in one reportable segment, there are 3 major service lines as listed. The breakdown of revenues for cach
service line is as follows:
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YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30, SEFTEMBER 30,
(amounts {n thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Dark fiber services
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY ADVISORS

Effective May 15, 2005, Globix entered into an Agreement with Communications Technology Advisors (“CTA™), pursuant to which CTA has
agreed to provide certain advisory services to Globix, including assistance with the integration of the NEON acquisition, financing and
acquisitions. As consideration for the services provided by CTA, the Company paid CTA a monthly fee of $120,000, which was reduced to
$60,000 on February 15, 2006. The Company also agreed to reimburse CTA for its out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with
rendering services to the Company during the term of the agreement. The out-of-packet expenses paid to CTA for the year ended September
30, 2006 totaled approximately $139,000. In addition to the monthly fee and expense reimbursement, CTA and the Company have agreed to
negotiate in good faith to determine a success fee based on merger and acquisition advice and opportunities provided by CTA to the Company.
The agreement expired on May 14, 2006 and was not renewed by the Company. Wayne Bart, Jr., the President of CTA, joined the Board of
Directors of Globix on March 7, 2005 and was previously a member of the Board of Directors of NEON. Mr. Barr did not stand for re-election
and left the Company’s Board on February 28, 2006. CTA previously provided advisory services to Globix and NEON in exchange fora
monthly fee of $65,000 and $35,000, respectively, .

The consulting setvices described above were approved by a majority of the Company’s disinterested directors.

For the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded in respect of CTA, consulting fees and reimbursement of
expenses of $949,000, $1,272,000 and $827,000, respectively, ‘

AGREEMENT WITH MODE 1 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.,

Neon Optica, Inc., & wholly owned subsidiary of NEON, is a party to two agreements for the Provision of Fiber Optic Facilities and Services
(Phases I and II}, pursuant to which certain subsidiaries of Northeast Utilities have agreed to grant to NEON the right to use transmission
structures, other facilities and fiber filaments in the their fibet optic cable network in exchange for annual payments and other fees. Payment
ander these agreements and a fee reimbursement agreemerit are expected to amount to approximately $2,500,000 per year. Due to timing of
lisbursements, payments under these agreements made in the year ended September 30, 2006 were 3,096,000, which reflects five quarterly
yayments. In calendar years 2003 and 2004, NEON made certain payments under these agreements by issuing shares of its common stock to
vode | Communications, Inc. (“Mode 1), a wholly owned subsidiary of Northeast Utilities. Mode 1 held approximately 13.2% of the
'ommon stock of NEON prior to the merger and as a result of the merger became the holder of approximately 5.6% of the Globix common
tock. In connection with the merger, Globix agreed to guarantee the obligations of Neon Optica, Inc. under these agreements. John H.
‘orsgren, who was a director of NEON prior to the merger and became a director of Globix in conniection with the merger, was the Vice
“hairman and Chief Financial Officer of Northeast Utilities until his retirement as of December 31, 2004. In April 2006, Mode 1 disposed of
ubstantially all of its Globix common stock.

IONUSES PAYMENT AS PART OF THE SALE OF THE PROPERTY

18 part of the sale of the 415 Greenwich Property in 2004, the Company paid bonuses of $450,000 to certain of the Company’s Executive
Micers and employees, which included a $169,000 payment to the Chairman of the Board of Directors for his contributions in connection with
1¢ sale and $169,000 payment to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.

IFE INSURANCE AND DISABILITY FOR PETER K. STEVENSON

ster K. Stevenson, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, receives life insurance and disability insurance benefits in excess of
« benefits that are offered to the Company’s other employees. These benefits are payable directly to Mr. Stevenson. The premiums for these
:nefits totaled $6,300 for the five month period ended September 30, 2002. No further
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amounts were paid during fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004. These benefits were approved by a majority of the Company’s disinterested
directors.

21. GUARANTEES
Subsidiary Guarantors

Under the terms of the indenture governing the 11% Senior Notes, the following subsidiaries of the Company have fully and unconditionally
and jointly and severally guaranteed the full and prompt performance of the Company’s obligations under the 11% Senior Notes and the
Indenture, including the payment of principal of and premium, if any, on and interest on the 11% Senior Notes: Bluestreak Digital, Inc.,
Gamenet Corporation, Naft Computer Service Corporation, Naft International Ltd., PFM Communications, Inc., GRE Consulting, Inc., 415
Greenwich GC, LLC, 415 Greenwich GC Tenant, LLC, 415 Greenwich GC MM, LLC, Comstar.Net, Inc. and Comstar Telecom & Wireless,
Inc. The Company merged each of these subsidiary guarantors, other than 415 Greenwich GC, LLC, 415 Greenwich GC Tenant, LLC and 415
Greenwich GC MM, LLC, with and into the Company. Under the terms of the Indenture, the guarantees by 415 Greenwich GC, LLC, 415
Greenwich GC Tenant, LLC and 415 Greenwich GC MM, LLC ceased to be effective upon the sale of the Property.

In connection with the acquisition of NEON, NEON and its subsidiaries became subsidiary guarantors under the indenture goveming the 11%
Senior Notes.

Neon and its subsidiaries are also subsidiary guarantors under the terms of the indenture governing the 9% Senior Notes.
22. DISCLOSURE ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying value of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables, payables, and current portion of capital lease obligation included in
the consolidated balance sheets approximate their fair value due to the their short-term maturity.

The fair valuc of marketable securities and investments are based on quoted market prices.

The fair market value of the 11% Senior Notes as of September 30, 2006 is approximately $74,938,000 based on the average market price paid
in transactions by third parties between September 20, 2006 and October 31, 2006.

The 9% Senior Notes are closely held and not actively traded in the open market and were retired subsequent to year end at face value.
23. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA {UNAUDITED)

As a result of the decision to exit the hosting business, the results of the hosting operations have been reflected as discontinued operations for
all periods presented. i
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DECEMBER 11, MARCH 31, JUNE 30, SEFTEMBER 30,
(amounts Iz thoutands) 2005 20406 2086 2006
; e T —
AR T AR b L e i i e

R e S S R R e R
Operating %Zlg Cuaﬁn{d (%)%gdnfs%szmm T

LTt R TRR TG
S Uy v )
.. Selling, general and administrative
B SR AT

Depreciation and amortization

TOBBERAINECIsE T ¢Kpenses

Loss from operations .

S AARART ARG g SRpente.
Other income (expense)

Ladsroi

Tax provision

B G et

S eons Biore eBHERE

[ncome from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $0




(includes gain on disposition of 46,213 in the fourth quarter)

NERESSImACome .

Dividends and accretion on cumulatwe convemble Preferrcd
stock

NEHEEY ebme atributible o Ehmmon stockholders

Basic and diluted loss per sharc attributed to common
stockholders

836 187 931 46,983
T T e o SR N e
3 164§ 66§ 169 ¥ 171
B R CvA 1) R ARG I [) (R T €
$ (0.13) § (008) $  (0.08) $ 0.78
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GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QUARTER ENDED
DECEMBER 31, MARCH 11, JUNE 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
(amounts [a thousands} : 2004 2005 1005 2005

Nefreventssny
Operating costs a -
B R i ST UdinE aghi
Bdzr et A e T e
spayrolindioeelihity i
Selling, gencral and administra

PRI BTG MR A o

B AL LA Yy e
d expenses:

XAl

Total operating costs and expenses

lntcrcsj&l and financing expense, net
CETOTRERHYOHTE (FR PSSR

Gain on debt discharge

R e

Tax provision

TR ot B s Ty A R IO R

B =y Wi bt
loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of 30 997} (1,006)

B T R S R R A R B R s
Dividends and accretion on cumulative convertible Preferred
stock b3 — $ — 3 202 $ 164

e O R T s e
Basic and diluted loss per share attributed to common

stockholders ‘ $ 038y % 045) 3 0.13) % (0.15)
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GLOBIX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 20, 2006, we paid off the entire $5 million principal amount of our 9% Senior Notes due 2008 as well as the accrued interest from
Qctober 1, 2006.

On November 1, 2006, we closed the sale of our US hosting business. The total sales price was $20 million, subject to various working capital
adjustments. Of the total sales price, $2 million is being held in an escrow. account until May 31, 2007 to cover certain contingent liabilities.
We also entered into a transition services agreement with the purchaser of the US hosting business to receive and provide certain services until
mid-2007; the buyer of our US hosting business agreed to provide the services called for under the transition services agrecment we had
entered into in connection with the sale of our US hosting business. Though the Company has not finalized the calculations associated with this
transaction, no loss is expected to be incurred from the completion of this deal.

Also on November 1, 2006, we discharged our remaining obligations under our 11% Senior Notes due 2008 and associated interest payable
under the terms of these Notes by depositing the sum of § 76,165,002 with the Indenture Trustee, thereby redeeming the 11% Senior Notcs in
full. Globix continues to carry a liability of $3,158,437 which may become due under certain additional notes issuable under a reserve
arrangement established in connection with our bankruptey proceeding in 2002. Globix is working with the Indenture Trustee to determine how
to dispose of any obligations under this escrow.
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SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

{amounts in thousands)

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C COLUMN D COLUMNE
ADDITIONS
BALANCE AT CHARGES TO CHARGES BALANCE AT
BEGINNING OF COSTS AND TO OTHER END OF
PERIOD EXPENSES ACCOUNTS DEDUCTIONS PERIOD

P [ S B T T S

October l. 2003 to Seer?mbcr 30, 2004
BEIShEET 200475158 embcr‘fﬁ 300

October 1, 2005 to September 30, 2006

(1,285) @

Defe el AR s e R
Octobc‘_r 1, 2003 to Septembcr 30,2004 _ $ 20,642 117,717
B B R S e R T s s i B et A ,%ﬁﬂ;m%@ﬁ%@% MW: i
October 1, 2005 to September 30, 2006 209 066 (49,893) 159,173

@) Includes the deduction related to the sale and reclassification of the UK hosting business and the US hosting business, respectively.
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries of Globix Corporation as of September 30, 2006

Name of Subsidiary

State/Country of
Incorporation/Organization

NEON Virginia Connect, LLC

ATC Merger Corp. New York
BLP Acquisition LLC New York
415 Greenwich GC, LLC New York
415 Greenwich GC Tenant LLC New York
415 Greenwich MM LLC New York
Globix Hosting LLC Delaware
Globix Denmark ApS Denmark
Globix (Netherlands) BV Netherlands
NEON Communicaticns, Inc. Delaware
NEON Optica, Inc. Delaware
NorthBast Optic Network of Connecticut, Inc. Delaware
- NorthEast Optic Network of New York, Inc. Delaware
NEON Securities Corp. Massachusetts
NEON Connect, Inc. Delaware
NEON Transcom, Inc. Delaware
Delaware




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

1, Peter K. Stevenson, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Globix Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or amit to state a material fact necessary
to make the staternents made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Bascd on my knowledge, the financial Statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(sj and I arc responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosute controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

¢. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual repoit our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation;
and g

d. Disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions); :

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not materal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Globix Corporation
Date: December 28, 2006
{8/ Peter K. Stevenson
Peter K. Stevenson
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

1, Eric I. Sandman, certify that:
1.1 have reviewed this annual rcpoﬁ on Form 10-K of Globix Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods prescuted in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(c) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15()) for the registrant and have: -

a. Designed such disclosure contrals and procedurés, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to cnsure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financia! reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report based on such evatuation;
and

d. Disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal contro! over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Globix Corporation
Date; December 28, 2006
{s/ Eric J. Sandman

Eric J. Sandman

Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Globix Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending September 30, 2006 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report™), 1, Peter K. Stevenson, Chicf Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Reped fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: Decernber 28, 2006

{s/ Peter K, Stevenson

Peter K. Stevenson
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOFTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Globix Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending September 30, 2006 as filed
with the Securitics and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Eric J. Sandman, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant te
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly prescnts, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: December 28, 2006

{s{ Enic J, Sandman
Eric J. Sandman
Chief Financial Officer

END




